o
LJ"‘:Q’ CITY Q©OF

YORK

COUNCI|L

Notice of a public meeting of

Executive
To: Councillors Carr (Chair), Aspden (Vice-Chair), Ayre,
Gillies, Rawlings, Runciman, Steward and Waller
Date: Thursday, 29 September 2016
Time: 5.30 pm
Venue: The George Hudson Board Room - 1st Floor West

Offices (F045)

AGENDA

Notice to Members — Post Decision Calling In:

Members are reminded that, should they wish to call in any item* on
this agenda, notice must be given to Democracy Support Group by
4:00 pm on Monday 3 October 2016.

*With the exception of matters that have been the subject of a
previous call in, require Full Council approval or are urgent which are
not subject to the call-in provisions. Any called in items will be
considered by the Corporate and Scrutiny Management Policy and
Scrutiny Committee.

1. Declarations of Interest
At this point, Members are asked to declare:
e any personal interests not included on the Register of
Interests
e any prejudicial interests or
e any disclosable pecuniary interests
which they may have in respect of business on this agenda.

www.york.gov.uk



Exclusion of Press and Public

To consider the exclusion of the press and public from the
meeting during consideration of the following item:

Annex 3 to Agenda Item 7 (Disposal of Grove House, Penley's
Grove Street) on the grounds that it contains information relating
to the financial or business affairs of any particular person
(including the authority holding that information). This
information is classed as exempt under paragraph 3 of Schedule
12A to Section 100A of the Local Government Act 1972 (as
revised by The Local Government (Access to Information)
(Variation) Order 2006.

Minutes (Pages 1 - 14)
To approve and sign the minutes of the last Executive meeting
held on 25 August 2016.

Public Participation

At this point in the meeting members of the public who have
registered to speak can do so. The deadline for registering is
5.00pm on Wednesday 28 September 2016. Members of the
public can speak on agenda items or matters within the remit of the
committee. To register to speak please contact the Democracy
Officer for the meeting, on the details at the foot of the agenda.

Filming, Recording or Webcasting Meetings

“Please note this meeting will be filmed and webcast and that
includes any registered public speakers, who have given their
permission. This broadcast can be viewed at
http://www.york.gov.uk/webcasts.

Residents are welcome to photograph, film or record Councillors
and Officers at all meetings open to the press and public. This
includes the use of social media reporting, i.e. tweeting. Anyone
wishing to film, record or take photos at any public meeting should
contact the Democracy Officer (whose contact details are at the
foot of this agenda) in advance of the meeting.
The Council’s protocol on Webcasting, Filming & Recording of
Meetings ensures that these practices are carried out in a manner
both respectful to the conduct of the meeting and all those present.
It can be viewed at
http://www.york.gov.uk/download/downloads/id/11406/protocol_for
webcasting_filming_and_recording_of council_meetings 201608

09.pdf



http://www.york.gov.uk/webcasts
http://www.york.gov.uk/download/downloads/id/11406/protocol_for_webcasting_filming_and_recording_of_council_meetings_20160809.pdf
http://www.york.gov.uk/download/downloads/id/11406/protocol_for_webcasting_filming_and_recording_of_council_meetings_20160809.pdf
http://www.york.gov.uk/download/downloads/id/11406/protocol_for_webcasting_filming_and_recording_of_council_meetings_20160809.pdf

10.

Forward Plan (Pages 15 - 26)
To receive details of those items that are listed on the Forward
Plan for the next two Executive meetings.

New Council Homes - Newbury Avenue  (Pages 27 - 46)
This report provides an update on the additional consultation
carried out at the Executive’s request following concerns raised
by a small number of residents regarding the approved planning
application to build 9 apartments at Newbury Avenue. Members
are asked to approve the development of 8 bungalows on the
site.

Disposal of Grove House, Penley's Grove Street (Pages 47 - 56)
This report seeks an Executive decision to select the highest

bidder for the disposal of the former Older Persons Home at Grove
House. This follows Executive agreement on 29 October 2015 to
sell the site to generate a capital receipt to support the wider Older
Persons Accommodation Programme.

Proposed Long Term Leases - Fishergate Postern Tower and
Ovington Cricket Club, Little Knavesmire (Pages 57 - 66)

This report seeks an Executive decision on granting two long term
leases to Friends of York Walls at Fishergate Postern Tower and
Ovington Cricket Club at Little Knavesmire, for Council owned
land and buildings.

Application for Community Right to Bid under the Localism
Act 2011 - White Rose House, Wheldrake (Pages 67 - 84)

This report presents an application to list White Rose House, 79
Main Street, Wheldrake, owned by the Girlguiding Association as an
Asset of Community Value under the provisions of the Localism Act.
This matter was referred to the Executive by the Executive Member
for Finance and Performance from his Decision Session on 15
August, following a request for further information, to enable
Members to make an informed decision.

Progress toward a new Operating Model for Adult Social
Care (Pages 85 - 102)

This report provides an update on the progress to develop a new
operating model for Adult Social Care. It highlights key developments
and identifies a proposal for resourcing the next stage of work.



11.

12.

Council Owned Companies (Pages 103 - 110)
This report builds on the report which the Executive considered

at their meeting on 30 June 2016 and proposes detailed
governance arrangements for Council companies with the
establishment of a Shareholder Committee.

Urgent Business

Any other business which the Chair considers urgent under the

Local Government Act 1972.

Democracy Officer:

Name: Jill Pickering
Contact details:

e Telephone —(01904) 552061
e E-mail —jill.pickering@york.gov.uk

For more information about any of the following please contact the
Democratic Services Officer responsible for servicing this meeting:

Registering to speak

Business of the meeting

Any special arrangements

Copies of reports and

For receiving reports in other formats

Contact details are set out above.

This information can be provided in your own language.
EMEAEMNESIRHEESR (cantonese)
G2 BT TR NS ST (FT (6o 2t | (Bengali)

Ta informacja moze byC dostarczona w twoim

wilasnym jezyku. (Rolish)

Bu bilgiyi kendi dilinizde almaniz miimkiindiir. (Turkish)
e D S ST e (Urdn)
T (01904) 551550




Page 1 Agenda Item 3

City of York Council Committee Minutes

Meeting Executive

Date 25 August 2016

Present Councillors Carr (Chair), Aspden (Vice-
Chair), Gillies, Rawlings, Runciman, Steward
and Waller

Other Members Councillor Looker

participating in the

meeting

In attendance Councillors K Myers and Warters

Apologies Councillors Ayre and D’Agorne

Part A - Matters Dealt With Under Delegated Powers
30. Declarations of Interest

Members were asked to declare, at this point in the meeting,
any personal interests, not included on the Register of Interests,
or any prejudicial or disclosable pecuniary interests they may
have in respect of business on the agenda.

Councillor Waller declared a personal interest in relation to
Agenda item 5 (Advertising ‘A’ Boards and other equipment on
the Public Highway) as a member of the Acomb Traders
Association.

Councillor Runciman also declared a personal interest in
relation to the same Agenda item as her husband was a
Volunteer Guide.

31. Minutes
Resolved: That the minutes of the Executive meetings held on

30 June and 14 July 2016 were approved and then
signed by the Chair as correct records.



32.

Page 2

Public Participation

It was reported that there had been twelve registrations to speak
at the meeting under the Council’s Public Participation Scheme,

two of which had subsequently withdrawn, and that one Member
of Council had also requested to speak. The registrations were

in respect of the following items:

Matters within the Remit of the Committee

Cllr Warters referred to current issues in connection with the
Community Stadium project which he had raised with the Chief
Executive and questioned alternative plans.

Advertising Boards, ‘A’ Boards and Other Equipment on the
Public Highway

Cllr Warters spoke in support of the implementation of the ‘A’
Board policy but questioned the exemption of Micklegate.

Diane Rowarth spoke on behalf of York Blind and Partially
Sighted Society expressing their complete support for the
banning of ‘A’ Boards in the city. She referred to the difficulties
encountered by those with mobility difficulties and expressed
sympathy with traders suggesting that consideration should be
given to more imaginative and effective methods of advertising
businesses. She also asked for the involvement of pedestrians
in the 12 month trial.

Ron Cooke spoke as Vice Chair of the Civic Trust following his
involvement in this issue over a number of years. He expressed
the Trusts full support for this evidence based initiative and
thanked Officers for their comprehensive report and work.

Sophie Jewett spoke as the owner of the Cocoa House in Blake
Street, confirming the contribution that small independent
businesses made to both local residents and tourists. She
referred to the outcome of the proposed policy on city
businesses that already faced challenges from out of town
centres and online shopping. She requested Members to extend
the timeframe to find amicable solutions for all concerned.

Sean Gill spoke as the Manager of Og Games who were in their
first year of trading in premises situated in an alley off Whip-Ma-
Whop-Ma-Gate. He confirmed their reliance on A Boards and to



Page 3

the effect removal would have on the business. He handed in a
petition signed by 350 customers also expressing their concern
and requesting the Council to amend the proposed ban on
advertising boards to ensure that it only prevented the
placement of hazardous boards, or boards in cluttered or unsafe
locations.

Harry Baines spoke as the owner of Love Cheese in Gillygate
and owner of an A Board which he felt added to the street
scene. With a cafe and garden behind their premises he felt that
the board drew in custom and the board had received no
negative comments. He asked for discussion to assist in the
positioning of the board and felt that a blanket ban was
unnecessary.

Bob Towner spoke to represent the York Older People’s
Assembly and expressed the Assemblies full support for the
proposals and the process to assist both older people and those
with sight and mobility issues. He requested members to
provide a consistent approach and include Micklegate in the

policy.

Magsood Sheikh spoke as the Regional Campaign Manager for
the RNIB referring to the numbers who suffered sight loss each
year. He referred to the numerous injuries sustained from A
Boards in the last three months and to the effect on confidence
this had. He also highlighted the obligations of the Council in
relation to legislation and requested the Executive to support the
ban.

Paul Lowman spoke to represent Inkwell a business in Gillygate
and he outlined the effects that a ban on A Boards would have
on small businesses in areas where there was already little
passing trade. He highlighted a lack of consistency in respect of
general obstructions on the cities streets. He requested
consideration on a case by case basis.

Dawn Argyle spoke as the owner of the Luxury Ice Cream
Company in Back Swinegate expressing her concern at the
proposals. She referred to the success of A Boards, particularly
as low cost advertising for small independent businesses to
catch passing trade. She referred to the effect of a blanket ban
on business and requested the licensing of A Boards or their
use in connection with a cafe licence.



33.

34.

Page 4

Capital Programme - Monitor 1 2016/17

Brian Watson spoke in respect of the Community Stadium and
in particular to recent events affecting the cities football and
rugby clubs. He referred to earlier agreements in relation to both
clubs.

Forward Plan

Members received and noted details of the items that were on
the Forward Plan for the next two Executive meetings, at the
time the agenda had been published.

Advertising Boards ("A" Boards) and Other Equipment on
the Public Highway

Consideration was given to a report which advised the
Executive of work undertaken following its decision of 28 August
2015 for Officers to prepare a Consultation Draft Policy for ‘A’
Boards and undertake consultation prior to reporting back to the
Executive.

Officers reported on the work undertaken by the cross party
Officer group, which included a street audit, prior to circulation
of the Consultation Document. The document had been sent out
to a range of stakeholders and this had been followed by a
consultation session. Wide ranging consultation had been
undertaken on the potential licensing of ‘A’ Boards and the
results of consultation had been reported at Annex B of the
report.

Members noted that there was a general consensus in support
of a more controlled form of advertising and the need for
consistency. It was also noted that over and above the initial
introduction costs that the cost of operating a licensed process
would not impact upon existing budgets.

Officers also highlighted the implications arising from the
introduction of the new policy, in particular that the policy
addressed the Council’s duties with respect to its Highway and
Planning responsibilities. They also confirmed that the scope for
licence application would be limited solely to Micklegate in view
of current work being undertaken to revitalise this area of the
city. In answer to earlier comments, Officers confirmed that they
would provide a named Officer contact to the York Association



Page 5

of Voluntary Guides in respect of the advertisement of their
services.

Members referred to the short transition period and requested
an extension to February 2016 to allow both Officers and
businesses additional time for dialogue and implementation of
the new arrangements. It was noted that a media awareness
campaign would be undertaken with letters being sent to all
businesses in the area and information provided on the
Council’s website.

Members expressed their support for the proposals and thanked
Officers for their comprehensive report and work undertaken
since the last report to the Executive. Members expressed their
support for city businesses and independent traders and agreed
that a trial of remote/shared ‘A’ Boards would provide feedback
to enable Members to evaluate the success of the scheme.

Following further discussion consideration was given to the
following options:

Option A - implementation of the Draft Policy (Appendix A), and
the prohibition of ‘A’ Boards (and all other comparable
advertising materials/features placed on the highway) within the
streets shown on the plan.

Option B — For Option A to be implemented over a 4 month
transition period (policy implemented 01/01/2017) to allow full
communication with the city centre businesses in particular and
for adequate staff resourcing and administrative systems to be
put in place.

Option C — the alternative originally tendered option of a board
placed flat against the building (FAB).

Option D — Recommended for a 12 month trial, an option
previously tendered, the Remote (or Shared) RAB/SAB board.

Option E the undertaking of further assessment and
consultation with regards to potential policy content for all areas
outside of the city centre zone, requiring a further report and
recommendations within 12 months

Option F- the undertaking of analysis of the initial city centre
policy, with a subsequent report one year post full
implementation.



Page 6

Option G — The option of not implementing the policy was not
recommended, for the reasons outlined in the report.

Resolved: That the Executive agree to:

Reason:

(1)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

v)

(i

(ii)

(iii)

The implementation of the Draft ‘A’ Board
Policy, relating to the area of city centre as
outlined in Option A and as shown on the plan
at Appendix A of the report; along with,

Option B, a 5 month transition period, to allow
the policy to become fully communicated and
put into practice for 1% February 2017, and

Option D, the trial of Remote ‘A’ Board
(RAB)/Shared ‘A’ Board (SAB)
criteria/approvals, for 12 months. *

Option E, the undertaking of further
assessment and consultation with regards to
potential policy content for all areas outside of
the city centre zone, requiring a further report
and recommendations within 12 months, and

Option F the undertaking of analysis of the
initial city centre policy, with a subsequent
report one year post full implementation. *

To provide adequate control of the many and
varied obstructions (particularly for those with
impaired mobility for example, blind and/or
partially sighted) temporarily located on the
public highway, taking into account of the
Council’s responsibilities under the Highways
Act 1980, the Equality Act 2010 and Town &
Country Planning Act 1990.

To mitigate the impact on the visual amenity of
the conservation area and setting of the many
listed buildings in the city centre.

To contribute further to the removal of street
clutter, improve the street scene and public
realm.



35.

Page 7

Action Required

1. Implement the draft policy from 1st February

2016 together with a trial of remote/shared boards. RB
2. Undertake further consultation and add report

back one year post implementation on to the

Council's Forward Plan. RB

Local Area Coordination in York

Members considered a report which outlined progress made to
identify an approach to Local Area Coordination, an
internationally recognised approach to the creation of networks
of support around people to increase independence and reduce
dependency on statutory services.

Officers reported on the significant pressures across the health
and social care system with a decrease in funding and
increased demand and life expectancy. They highlighted that
the Coordinators would deliver support alongside local people,
in partnership with statutory, community and voluntary services.

Members noted that the initial proposal related to the
appointment of three Local Area Coordinators located in three
different geographical areas to provide an evidence base to
provide a business case for further investment.

Members also noted examples of work undertaken by Local
Area Coordinators and that the Local Government Association
had provided initial funding for the development of coordination
in the city.

Officers confirmed that the selection of areas involved in the trial
would be undertaken in conjunction with other Council services,
partners and Ward Members and would cover a range of
different settings with a variety of different issues.

Members expressed their support for the direction of travel and
the need for innovative work to assist with the demand on
Council services.

Following further discussion it was
Resolved: That the Executive agree to note the progress made

in identifying an approach which helps to address
significant demand challenges faced in the city and



36.

Page 8

approve the progression to the next stage of
development, including the recruitment of Local Area
Coordinators. *

Reason: To ensure residents are best supported in respect of
the future context of Adult Social Care.

Action Required
1. Proceed with implementation of this approach to
Local Area Coordination. wB

Re-procurement of Alcohol & Drug Treatment and Recovery
Services

The Executive considered a report which sought authorisation to
approach the market for the tendering of an adult alcohol and
illicit drug misuse harm reduction, treatment and recovery
service and the delegation of the award of the contract to the
Director of Public Health.

Members noted that the proposal was to develop a model for
young people’s substance misuse services along side the
current work for early interventions. Also that consultation had
been undertaken with a range of partners with further
engagement proposed to include service recipients. It was also
noted that it was intended to award a new 3 year contract with
an option to extend this by 2 years, up to a maximum of 7 years,
subject to performance. With Department of Health cuts to
Public Health Grant allocations and projected further reductions
a budget reduction of £550k was proposed over the first 5 years
of the contact.

Officers highlighted the implications and risks and confirmed
that to mitigate these the contact provider would be required to
work with the Council as a development partner to provide a
safe transition.

Members highlighted the importance of early intervention to
improve recovery outcomes and it was

Resolved: That the Executive agree to:

(i)  Authorise officers within City of York Council to
approach the market to inform the
commissioning and procurement of an alcohol
and illicit drug misuse service for adults from
July 2017.



37.

Page 9

(i)  Authorise the Director of Public Health to
accept the highest scoring tender, in
accordance with evaluation criteria and award
a contract.

(i)  Support the direction of travel for young
people’s substance misuse services and the
integration of substance misuse for children
and young people into the wider offer for
children, young people and families being
developed as part of the new delivery model
for early intervention and prevention in York. -

Reason: To enable substance misuse treatment and recovery
services to be available to York residents that are
value for money and responsive to local need.

Action Required

1. Proceed with the tendering of this service from

July 2017 and the acceptance of the highest

scoring tender by the Director of Public Health. LB, MG

Transport for the North Governance

Consideration was give to a report which sought Executive
approval for the authorisation of Transport for the North(TfN) to
submit a draft governance proposal to Government.

Members were reminded that TfN had been created in 2014 to
allow the North to speak as one voice on key infrastructure
decisions which benefitted the region as a whole. TfN had
prepared a Northern Transport Strategy which identified the key
objectives for the improvement of transport in the area.

Officers confirmed that TfN was currently in the process of
seeking to become a statutory body, to become the first Sub-
National Transport Body. They were also seeking the authority’s
agreement, in principle, to become a constituent authority of TfN
and approval to submit the draft proposal to Government,
attached at Annex B of the report. Officers highlighted that 16
authorities had already accepted the proposal in principle and
outlined details of the draft proposal and, in particular, the voting
system and the suggested voting metric.



38.

Page 10

Members acknowledged the importance of the cities
involvement subject to clarification of the matters outlined in the
report.

Resolved: That the Executive agree to:

1)  The submission to Government of the draft
proposal for Transport for the North (TfN) to
become a Sub-National Transport Body.

i)  Inform Transport for the North of its
requirements for full and final agreements and
further clarification as set out in paragraph 21
of the report prior to any final and binding
agreement to become a constituent authority
of Transport for the North.

(i) The Director of City and Environmental
Services being instructed to engage with
Transport for the North to seek the agreements
and clarification as set out in ii) above. *

Reason: To enable the authority to have influence over the
key industry stakeholders and the development and
implementation of transport services across the
North of England.

Action Required

1. Director to confirm Council's agreement to

submission of draft proposal but prior to final

agreement request listed requirements are met. NF

2016/17 Finance and Performance Monitor 1

Consideration was given to a report which presented details of
the Council’s overall finance and performance position for the
period covering 1 April to 30 June 2016, together with an
overview of any emerging issues.

It was noted that the financial pressures facing the Council were
projected at £1,197k an improvement from previous years. An
overview of the forecast on a directorate basis was shown at
Table 1 of the report, with detail of the main variations and
mitigating actions proposed in each Directorate at paragraphs 8
to 28 and performance at paragraphs 37 to 96.



39.

Page 11

Officers highlighted the financial pressures and the challenge of
delivering savings of £6.5m to reach a balanced budget. In
particular the variations in City & Environmental Services, Adult
Social Care and Public Health and reported that any decision
regarding the use of the general contingency would be brought
back to a future meeting.

Resolved: That Executive agree to:

()  Note the current finance and performance
information;

(i)  Continue to look at options for the
presentation of performance. *

Reason: () To ensure expenditure is kept within the
approved budget;

(i) To ensure performance reporting and
framework is in line with models of good
practice across local authorities.

Action Required
1. Report back on performance monitoring
arrangements. DM

Capital Programme - Monitor 1 2016/17
[See also Part B minutes]

Consideration was given to a report which set out the projected
outturn position for 2016/17 including any under/over spends
and adjustments, along with requests to re-profile budgets to or
from current and future years.

With an approved capital budget of £98.035m, following
amendments reported to Executive and Council, an increase of
£2.111m was detailed in the report which resulted in a revised
capital programme of £100.146m, an increase of £2.216m in
2016/17. It was noted that the increases had been attributed to
an increase in government grants, use of S106 funds and use of
capital receipts. Details of the variances against each portfolio



Page 12

area were reported at Table 1, at paragraphs 8 to 19 and Annex
1 of the report.

Members noted that £80k had been allocated to the York
Explore scheme from the capital contingency to contribute to the
purchase of a mobile library vehicle in Haxby, with the closure of
the library following a structural survey.

Resolved: That Executive agree to:

(i)  Note the 2016/17 revised budget of
£100.146m as set out in paragraph 6 and
Table 1 of the report.

(i)  Note the restated capital programme for
2016/17 — 2020/21 as set out in paragraph 17,
Table 2 and detailed in Annex A of the report.

Reason: To enable the effective management and monitoring
of the Council’s capital programme.

Part B - Matters Referred to Council
40. Capital Programme - Monitor 1 2016/17
[See also Part A minutes]

Consideration was given to a report which set out the projected
outturn position for 2016/17 including any under/over spends
and adjustments, along with requests to re-profile budgets to or
from current and future years.

With an approved capital budget of £98.035m, following
amendments reported to Executive and Council, an increase of
£2.111m was detailed in the report which resulted in a revised
capital programme of £100.146m, an increase of £2.216m in
2016/17. It was noted that the increases had been attributed to
an increase in government grants, use of S106 funds and use of
capital receipts. Details of the variances against each portfolio
area were reported at Table 1, at paragraphs 8 to 19 and Annex
1 of the report.

Recommended: That Full Council agree the adjustments
resulting in an increase in the 2016/17 capital



Page 13

programme of £2.111m as detailed in the
report and contained in Annex A. *

Reason: To enable the effective management and
monitoring of the Council’s capital programme.

Action Required
1. Refer to Council. JP

CliIr D Carr, Chair
[The meeting started at 5.30 pm and finished at 7.20 pm].



Page 14

This page is intentionally left blank



Forward Plan: Executive Meeting: 29 September 2016

Table 1: Items scheduled on the Forward Plan for the Executive Meeting on 13 October 2016

Title and Description

Author

Portfolio Holder

Actual Cost of Care - Residential & Nursing Care Fee Rates

Purpose of Report: To present a report that informs the Executive on fee rates
for Residential and Nursing Care from 2016-19. This will be based on an
Actual Cost of Care Exercise undertaken in partnership with the Independent
Care Group and subsequent negotiations.

The Executive are asked to agree to a three year fee settlement for providers
and the financial costs of implementing an agreed increase.

Gary Brittain /
Richard Hartle

Executive Member
for Adult Social Care
and Health

Proposals for the Freehold of Stonebow House and further options for
changes to the Commercial Portfolio

Purpose of Report: The report will set out options to dispose of the freehold
interest in 2 poorly performing freehold interests currently held in the Council’s
commercial portfolio (Stonebow House and 10-12 Redeness St) and to invest
in the purchase of the leasehold interests of 2 properties with a better financial
yield.

The disposal of the freehold interests will, subject to planning, enable
redevelopment of underused assets. The purchase of the leasehold interests
will generate an increased revenue income and secure potential future
development opportunities.

Andy Kerr

Executive Member
for Finance and
Performance

GT abed

G wa)| epuaby



Council Housing — New Operating Model Options Stock Option Appraisal | Tom Brittain Executive Leader
(incorporating

Purpose of Report: As part of the council’s wider review of its overall future Housing & Safer

operating model, all service areas within the council have been asked to Neighbourhoods)

undertake a review of their operating model.

This report recommends that we undertake a full housing stock options

appraisal and at the same time develop tenant and staff panels and establish

a ad-hoc cross party member scrutiny panel to consider the long term

sustainability of the service and assess the different organisational

governance models to support the final decision making process.

Coppergate Traffic Regulation Order (TRO) Objections Tony Clarke Executive Member

Purpose of Report: To bring to Members attention all objections made during
the formal Traffic Regulation Order (TRO) consultation period. To provide
details of possible implementation strategy subject to approval of the TRO.

Members are asked to consider the objections and either approve the
proposals as advertised or make amendments to/drop the proposal. Subject
to the approval to make the TRO, to also approve the implementation strategy
for the enforcement of the TRO.

for Transport &
Planning

9T abed



City of York, North Yorkshire County Council and North York Moors
National Park Minerals and Waste Joint Plan - Publication Draft

Purpose of Report: As a Waste and Minerals Planning Authority, it is our
statutory duty to address these issues in York. City of York Council is
producing a Joint Plan with North Yorkshire County Council and North York
Moors National Park Authority.

The Executive Report will recommend that Members approve the publication
draft plan for public consultation.

Rebecca Harrison

Executive Member
for Transport &
Planning

Executive Member
for Environment

Result of Park & Ride Service Operator Procurement

Purpose of the Report: To report to the Executive on the result of the
procurement of the Park & Ride service operator and to gain approval for any
measures required to enable the continued provision of the City’s Park & Ride
service.

Please note that this item has been called-in for pre-decision scrutiny and will
be considered by the Corporate & Scrutiny Management Policy & Scrutiny
(Calling In) Committee at a meeting on 11 October 2016

Tony Clarke

Executive Member
for Transport &
Planning

LT abed



Table 2: Items scheduled on the Forward Plan for the Executive Meeting on 24 November 2016

Title and Description

Author

Portfolio Holder

Taking Forward York's Public Realm

Purpose of Report: This report concerns the future development of York's
public realm. It:

- Sets out opportunities and priorities for action.

- Proposes a new partnership approach to engage all stakeholders in the city
in improving our public realm.

- Suggests a framework for future capital investment by the Council.

The Executive are asked to approve:

- Aspirations for future public realm enhancements.

- A partnership project board to prepare an invest

ent strategy for the city walls.

- Use of the Council's Built Environment capital funding.

- A partnership approach to champion York's public realm and to refresh
York's bid for World Heritage status.

Charlie Croft

Executive Member
for Transport and
Planning

York Arts Education Service

Purpose of Report: This report concerns the future of the York Arts Education
Service.

Executive are asked to agree to a new delivery model for York Arts Education
Service subject to presentation of an appropriate business plan.

Charlie Croft

Executive Member
for Education,
Children and Young
People

gT abed



Title and Description

Author

Portfolio Holder

Treasury Management and Prudential Indicators Mid Year Review
Purpose of Report: To provide Members with an update on the treasury
management position.

Members are asked to note the issues and approve any adjustments as
required to the prudential indicators or strategy.

Debbie Mitchell

Executive Member
for Finance &
Performance

Q2 Finance and Performance Monitor
Purpose of Report: To provide Members with an update on finance and
performance information.

Members are asked to note the issues.

Debbie Mitchell

Executive Member
for Finance &
Performance

Q2 Capital Programme Monitor
Purpose of Report: To provide Members with an update on the capital
programme.

Members are asked to note the issues and recommend to full Council any
changes as appropriate.

Emma Audrain

Executive Member
for Finance &
Performance

Options for the Disposal of 29 Castlegate

To present to Executive options for the disposal of 29 Castlegate following the
decision to relocate and reconfigure services currently operating from the
building.

Members are asked to consider and make a decision on the options for the
disposal of 29 Castlegate.

Tracey Carter

Executive Member
for Finance and
Performance

6T abed



Title and Description

Author

Portfolio Holder

The Next Phase of the Older Persons’ Accommodation Programme:
deciding the future of the third Older Persons’ Home to be considered
for closure.

The purpose of this report is to provide Members with the results of the
consultation undertaken with the residents, relatives and staff of the Council
run residential care homes which have been subject to the exploration of the
option to close the home with current residents moving to alternative
accommodation.

Members are asked to consider the results of consultation undertaken and
make a decision about whether to close the home.

Roy Wallington

Executive Member
for Adult Social
Care and Health

York Central - Purchase of the Unipart Site

To seek an Executive decision to purchase the Unipart factory in order to
facilitate the delivery of the York Central scheme.

Tracey Carter

Executive Member
for Finance and
Performance

York Central - Consultation on Highway Access Options

Purpose of Report: To seek an Executive decision to undertake a public
consult on a range of potential highways access routes on to the York Central
site in order to progress a Supplementary Planning Document for York
Central.

Members are asked to agree to the undertaking of public consultation on
potential highway access routes to the York Central site.

Tony Clarke

Executive Member
for Transport and
Planning

0z abed



Title and Description

Author

Portfolio Holder

Demolition of Castle Mills Car Park

The report will seek permission to demolish the Castle Mills Car Park on
Piccadilly due to its poor condition and prior to the potential redevelopment of
the site. The report will also consider options for the temporary reinstatement
of surface car parking

Tracey Carter

Executive Member
for Finance and
Performance

T2 abed



Table 3: Items slipped on the Forward Plan

Title & Description Author Portfolio Original Revised | Reason for
Holder Date Date Slippage

Actual Cost of Care - Residential & Gary Executive 29 Sept 16 | 13 Oct 16 To allow for some

Nursing Care Fee Rates Brittain/ Member for amendments to be

Richard Adult Social made to the

Purpose of Report: To present a report that Hartle Care and narrative of the

informs the Executive on fee rates for Health report before

Residential and Nursing Care from 2016-19. submission to

This will be based on an Actual Cost of Care Members.

Exercise undertaken in partnership with the

Independent Care Group and subsequent

negotiations.

The Executive are asked to agree to a three

year fee settlement for providers and the

financial costs of implementing an agreed

increase.

Proposals for the Freehold of Stonebow Andy Kerr | Executive 29 Sept 16 | 13 Oct 16 To allow Officers

House and further options for changes to Member for time to examine

the Commercial Portfolio Finance and further options for
Performance changes to the

Purpose of Report: The report will set out
options to dispose of the freehold interest in 2
poorly performing freehold interests currently
held in the Council’s commercial portfolio
(Stonebow House and 10-12 Redeness St)

Council’s
commercial
portfolio.

Z2c obed



Title & Description Author Portfolio Original Revised | Reason for
Holder Date Date Slippage

and to invest in the purchase of the leasehold

interests of 2 properties with a better financial

yield.

The disposal of the freehold interests will,

subject to planning, enable redevelopment of

underused assets. The purchase of the

leasehold interests will generate an increased

revenue income and secure potential future

development opportunities.

Taking Forward York_'s Public Realm _ _ 29 Sept 16 | 24 Nov 16 To aI_Iow fL!rther

Purpose of Report: This report concerns the Charlie Executive consideration of

future development of York's public realm. It: | Croft Member for options before

- Sets out opportunities and priorities for Transport and presenting the

action. Planning report to Members.

- Proposes a new partnership approach to
engage all stakeholders in the city in
improving our public realm.

- Suggests a framework for future capital
investment by the Council.

The Executive are asked to approve:

- Aspirations for future public realm
enhancements.

- A partnership project board to prepare an

ez abed



Title & Description Author Portfolio Original Revised | Reason for
Holder Date Date Slippage

investment strategy for the city walls.

- Use of the Council's Built Environment

capital funding.

- A partnership approach to champion York's

public realm and to refresh York's bid for

World Heritage status.

Treasury Management and Prudential Debbie Executive 13 0ct 16 |24 Nov 16 | TO have a more

Indicators Mid Year Review Mitchell Member for even reporting

Purpose of Report: To provide Members with Finance & cycle during the

an update on the treasury management Performance financial year

position.

Members are asked to note the issues and

approve any adjustments as required to the

prudential indicators or strategy.

Q2 Finance and Performance Monitor Debbie Executive 13 0ct 16 | 24 Nov 16 | TO have a more

Purpose of Report: To provide Members with | Mitchell Member for even reporting

an update on finance and performance Finance & cycle during the

information. Performance financial year

Members are asked to note the issues.

vz abed




Title & Description Author Portfolio Original Revised | Reason for
Holder Date Date Slippage
Q2 Capital Programme M(_)nitor _ Emmq Executive 13 0ct 16 | 24 Nov 16 | TO have a more
Purpose of Report: To provide Members with | Audrain Member for even reporting
an update on the capital programme. Finance & cycle during the
Performance financial year
Members are asked to note the issues and
recommend to full Council any changes as
appropriate.
York Arts Education _Service Charlie Executive 29 Nov 16 | 24 Nov 16 | AS th(_e report will
Purpose of Report: This report concerns the Croft Member for o contain corporate
future of the York Arts Education Service. Education, (Decision implications in
Children and | Session - respect to support
Executive are asked to agree to a new Young People | Executive services and
delivery model for York Arts Education Member for pension issues, it
Service subject to presentation of an Education, has been agreed
appropriate business plan. Children that this issue
and Young should be
People) considered by

Executive.

Gz abed



Title & Description Author Portfolio Original Revised | Reason for

Holder Date Date Slippage
York Central - Pur_chase_o_f the Unipart Site | Tracey Executive 13 0ct 16 | 24 Nov 16 Delay_s In receiving
To seek an Executive decision to purchase Carter Member for key pieces of
the Unipart factory in order to facilitate the Finance and information.
delivery of the York Central scheme. Performance
York Centra_l - Consultation on Highway Tony Executive 13 0ct 16 | 24 Nov 16 Delay_s In receiving
Access Options Clarke Member for key pieces of
Purpose of Report: To seek an Executive Transport and information.
decision to undertake a public consult on a Planning

range of potential highways access routes on
to the York Central site in order to progress a
Supplementary Planning Document for York
Central.

Members are asked to agree to the
undertaking of public consultation on potential
highway access routes to the York Central
site.

9z abed



Page 27 Agenda Item 6

Meeting of the Executive 29 September 2016
Report of the Assistant Director of Housing and Community Safety
New Council Homes — Newbury Avenue

Summary

1. This report provides an update on the additional consultation carried out
at the Executive’s request following concerns raised by a small number
of residents regarding the approved planning application to build 9
apartments at Newbury Avenue.

Recommendations
2. Executive are asked to:

a) Approve Option 1 to bring forward development of 8 new
bungalows.

Reason: To ensure that further account of residents concerns are
considered and a development scheme brought forward which meets
the council’s and the communities needs.

Background

3. Onthe 7" May 2013, Cabinet considered a report which set out
proposals to deliver a first phase of new council homes and sought
approval for the council to pursue development of a number of sites
within the Housing Revenue Account that would deliver between 50-70
homes. A table of sites was included which set out the proposal to
redevelop Newbury Avenue (garage court) for an indicative 9
apartments.

4. Following the local elections in May 2015, a change of administration
took place and at the Executive meeting on the 25" June 2015, Members
considered a report which sought approval to include new council
housing as part of the ongoing project to demolish and replace Ordnance
Lane homeless hostel.

5. The Executive Member presented the report and also drew attention to
the status of the current building programme approved in May 2013. In



Page 28

particular he highlighted concerns raised with him by local ward
councillors in relation to the proposed new council house building on the
Newbury Avenue site in Acomb. Therefore, in order to allay their
concerns, Executive requested a re-examination of the proposals for the
site and further consultation.

Consultation

6.

10.

Following Executives request further consultation was carried out. Local
residents and Ward Members were invited to a consultation event held at
York & District Indoor Bowls Club, 206 invitations were sent to residents
living in the vicinity of the site. Ward member (ClIr Waller) and the
housing portfolio holder (Cllr Carr) attended. Drawings of the site layout
and property types were available to view.

Seventeen people attended the event and eight left feedback on the
night with three more submitting feedback by post. A petition with 24
signatures was submitted, eight signatories were from people who also
submitted comments sheets. The petition was signed as being from
residents who believe ‘the proposed development is too large and all the
extra traffic will seriously affect parking in the area, and our right to light
will also be affected’.

A number of residents felt the area is over developed already particularly
with the recent addition of the housing development on Our Lady’s site.
Other concerns raised include:

e Loss of view over Hob Moor

e Concerns about contamination

e Loss of light

e An out of date geotechnical survey

A number of people acknowledged there was a need for additional
affordable housing but thought an alternative location should be found.
Two respondents suggested building bungalows on the site

Following the public consultation a meeting was arranged to feedback to
ClIr Carr (Executive Member — Housing & Safer Neighbourhoods) and
Clir Waller (Ward Councillor). Key concerns from the consultation were
the level of traffic, parking and the height of the development given that it
was 2.5 storeys high. It was resolved at the meeting that the site was
appropriate for development, but alternative schemes should be drawn
up limiting the height of any development to a maximum of 2 storeys.



Page 29

Alternative Options

11. Given that expenditure had been incurred on the original design, officers

12.

13.

14.

15.

16.

met with the architect to agree the scope of any revised sketch schemes
that would consider:

a. How much of the detailed design could be re-used,;

b. Whether it would be possible to reduce the height of the building but
utilise the loft space for a third storey;

c. Whether a reduction in units from 9 to 6 would make the cost per
unit still viable and value for money;

d. What impact there would be on the construction period and, if this
period was not much reduced, then to factor that into the decision
making.

Taking account of the above, the architects were asked to bring forward
alternative proposals with a maximum height of 2 storeys. Four
proposals were presented.

12 x 1 bed apartments (2 person)
12 x 1 bed apartments (1 person)
8 x 1 bed apartments (2 person)
8 x 1 bed bungalows (2 person)

Alternative Scheme (1) - 12 x 1 bed (2 person) apartments - This
scheme has an arrangement of 6 x 1 bed apartments on each of two
floors. A hallway divides the apartments on each floor to give access to
3 apartments on each side. The apartments are all 52sgm and intended
for 2 persons. (See Annex 1 for draft site layout)

There are 12 car parking spaces for residents, together with 3 visitor
bays onto Newbury Avenue. The layout gives a slightly larger floor plate
than the approved scheme, but is no nearer to the existing 3 storey
apartment adjacent to the north-east. At 8m (ridge height) the building is
1.3m lower in height than the approved development (9.3m to dorma
roof).

The apartment block aligns with the boundary to Hob Moor, with rear
elevations facing south-east. Initial feedback from Development
Management Officers is that the layout is less interesting than the
approved scheme.

There may be opportunity for the 6 ground floor apartments to be
prioritised for downsizing for older persons but, with no lift, the first floor
would have to be let to a wider age group.



17.

18.

19.

20.

21.

22.

23.

24.

Page 30

Alternative Scheme (2) - 12 x 1 bed (1 person) apartments — The
scheme is very similar to Option 1 above, differing only in apartment size
(40sgm instead of 52sgm) and therefore a slightly smaller footprint. The
stair cores and circulation are the same. The flats are intended for 1
person. The building height and massing is the same as for Option 1.
(See Annex 2 for draft site layout)

As with Option 1 there are 12 resident car parking spaces together with 3
visitor parking bays.

There could be prioritisation for older persons’ accommodation as part of
the Council’s downsizing programme but, with this option being smaller
in size than Options 1, or the approved scheme, interest may not be
high.

Alternative Scheme (3) - 8 x 1 bed (2 person) apartments — The floor
plate for this scheme is smaller than options 1 and 2 above, being just 4
apartments on each floor, each with their own private access. The
building height is the same as options 1 and 2, and 1.3m lower than the
approved scheme. (See Annex 3 for draft site layout)

There are 8 resident car parking spaces and 2 visitor parking bays. The
layout is linear, with the rear elevations facing south-east towards Hob
Moor.

The apartments are all 52sgm in size (for 2 people) and, as such, could
be prioritised for downsizing.

Alternative Scheme (4) - 8 x 1 bed (2 person) bungalows — The floor
plate is wider, in order to incorporate all 8 bungalows, however the
building is 5.5m to ridge height, and so significantly lower than Options 1,
2 and 3 and the approved 2.5 storey scheme. (See Annex 4 for draft site
layout)

All the bungalows are 52sgm and could be prioritised for the Council’s
downsizing scheme. There are 8 resident car parking spaces to the rear
of the bungalows, and 2 visitor parking bays.

The Original Scheme

25.

26.

The original Scheme was for 9 Apartments, 8 x 2 bed & 1 x 1 bed. The
properties were designed to be built over 2.5 storeys with a ridge height
of 9.3m (dormer). (See Annex 5 for approved site layout)

The 2 bed apartments were 64sgm and the 1 bed was 57sgm. The
proposal included a lift which was linked to the intention that the
development would be prioritised for downsizing. There are 7 resident



Page 31

parking spaces and 8 additional parking bays created for use by the
wider community.

Summary of Build Options

27.

28.

When comparing the schemes it has to be acknowledged that you are
not comparing like for like, the number and size of the units is different.
The original scheme also included a lift, wider communal landscaping
and a parking scheme which provided 8 parking spaces for existing
residents.

It also needs to be recognised that the original scheme is a fully tendered
scheme and therefore there is more certainty around the cost of this
scheme (not withstanding that this needs to be adjusted for inflationary
changes over the last 18 months) and the costs set out for the alternative
proposals are based on Quantity Surveyor estimates. The following
table therefore sets out the summary of the schemes details and cost,
including adjustments for inflation.



Table 1 — Summary of Options

Estimated Costs Per Unit

Unrecoverable

costs Communal
No. of No.of | Typeof | Sizeof | Construction Fees /site | associated with | Landscaping / | Total Estimated
Scheme units Beds units Unit Costs costs @19% | original scheme Parking scheme costs
Alternative 1 12 1 Apt  |52sgqm | £ 127591 | £ 24,242 | £ 120,000 | £ 220,000 | £ 2,162,002
Alternative 2 12 1 Apt |40sgm | £ 108,259 | £ 20,569 | £ 120,000 | £ 220,000 | £ 1,885,941
Alternatice 3 8 1 Apt  |52sgm | £ 140,157 | £ 26,630 | £ 120,000 | £ 220,000 | £ 1,674,295
Alternative 4 1 Bung [52sgqm | £ 121,792 | £ 23,140 | £ 120,000 | £ 220,000 | £ 1,499,456
Original * 9 2 Apt_ 164sam | o 45p072 £ 28894 Con',bf‘tfl']“cct'%‘:] " | 1628686
1 Apt |57 sgm

*Original tender price adjusted for inflation

2 obed



Page 33

Options

29.

30.

Option one — To approve ‘Alternative Scheme 4’ to build 8 new (2
person) bungalows.

Option two — To instruct officers to bring forward a different alternative
scheme or continue with the previously approved development scheme.

Analysis

31.

32.

33.

34.

35.

36.

Option one —~When considering the alternative scheme proposals, two of
the four options presented would result in a total scheme cost in excess
of the approved capital spend, however they deliver three more units
than the original scheme. When considering the cost per unit it is difficult
to have clear comparisons as the nature and size of the units are
different and therefore you are not considering like for like.

Discussions with the Executive Member for Housing and the Ward
Councillors, with whom residents raised concerns about the original
scheme, has indicated that it is felt that a scheme of bungalows is the
most desirable.

Approving this option would result in delays in bringing development
forward on this site, linked to detailed design and planning approval for
any new scheme when compared to the original scheme which has full
planning approval and is ready to go. It should also be noted that the
money spent to date on the original scheme will be unrecoverable.

The construction period for the alternative schemes or the original
schemes would be very similar and therefore the impact of construction
traffic between the alternative schemes and the original scheme is
negligible.

The reality of significant increased residential traffic post development is
that the differences in size of proposed development is unlikely to have a
significant impact one way or another. The critical issue for future traffic
impact is the nature of the units and the future residents. Given the
proposed development of bungalows it is anticipated that whilst there will
be some increase in car ownership and therefore residential traffic, it is
likely to me minimal.

Option Two — The original scheme has undergone public consultation at
both pre planning and planning stages and has been approved.
However, whilst it has planning approval, there are clearly concerns that
some residents have that led to the council re-examining the proposal
and carrying out additional consultation.



Page 34

37. Moving forward with the original scheme would bring development
forward on this site quicker (it has full planning permission). However it
would not take account of the additional concerns that a small number of
residents have.

Council Plan

38. The proposals link and support the priorities within the council plan.

Implications

39. The implications arising from this report are:

Financial — The cost of delivering the proposed scheme is less that
the original approved scheme.

As part of the development of the HRA Business Plan, post self
financing, the authority created a New Build Investment Fund of
£20m. To date £14.7m has been spent / allocated leaving a balance
of £5.3m.

The approved budget for phase one of new council house building is
£10.2m, reported through capital monitoring in February 2015
(Capital Strategy report). The council’s cost consultants have also
advised that due to recent significant increases in build costs of up
to 10% per annum there may be further increases in the tender
returns for the 4 sites yet to be awarded a contract (Newbury Ave is
one of the 4 sites). Once the tender returns have been received
additional approval will be sought for any consequent increase in the
budget. Any increase will be funded from the net balance on the
HRA New Build Investment Fund.

Human Resources (HR) — None
Equalities — None

Legal — None

Crime and Disorder — None
Information Technology (IT) — None

Property — None



Page 35

Risk Management

40. The decision to re-examine the proposals was taken in light of a number
of residents concerns over the original development. The outcome of the
consultation was not conclusive in that some residents thought
development of some nature was appropriate where others felt that the
site should not be developed. Clearly in cases like this some residents
may feel that their views have not been taken into account. However,
overall the risks associated with this report are deemed to be low.

Contact Details

Author: Chief Officers Responsible for the report:
Steve Waddington Sally Burns

Assistant Director — Director of Communities & Neighbourhoods

Housing & Community

Safety

Tel No. 01904 554016 Report Date 26" August 2016

Approved v

All

Wards Affected: Westfield

For further information please contact the author of the report

Annexes

Annex 1 — Alternative scheme 1 — Draft site layout
Annex 2 — Alternative scheme 2 — Draft site layout
Annex 3 — Alternative scheme 3 — Draft site layout
Annex 4 — Alternative scheme 4 — Draft site layout
Annex 5 — Original scheme — Approved site layout

Background Papers
Original Planning Application / report

25™ June 2015 Executive Report
Cabinet Report — May 2013



This page is intentionally left blank



SAFETY HEALTH AND ENVIRONMENTAL
ANNEX 1 DONOTSCALE INFORMATION

In addition to the hazards/risks normally associated with the types of work
detailed on this drawing, note the following;

CONSTRUCTION

MAINTENANCE/CLEANING

DECOMMISSIONING/DEMOLITION

Itis assumed thatall works will be carried out by a competent contractor
working, where appropriate, to an approved method statement.

Key

. = Hard Landscaping
. = Soft Landscaping

‘ = Existing Tree’s Maintained

2 Storey
12 x 1 bed (2 person) Apartments @52sqm
12 parking spaces and 3 visitor bays

/€ abed

Existing Trees fo be removed. Please refer fo Landscaping Plan
(Locations indicafive not fully surveyed)
Dashed line denotes location of proposed building
footprint approved at planning
Existing garages to be demolished (By
Specialist Demolition Sub Contractor)
Rev. |Date Descripion By [onkd | Apr
OrawnaSels  INFORMATION ey
Akins Limied
ATKINS ~ E=-
Leeds
West Yorkshire
151568
Tl +44 (0113306 6000
Fax:+4 (0)113306 6002
wiw akinsglobal.com
 Copyright © Atins Limied (2011)
Clent
City of York Council
Project Tile . i
Newbury Avenue Residential
Development
Drawing Tite
Proposed Site Plan

Option 1

Authorised

S Designed Drawn Crecked
1:200 HCH HCH RJ NH

A1 [11.04.16 |11.04.16 | 12.04.16 | 12.04.16

@ Proposed Option 1

1:200@A1

Draving Number Revision

5124500-ATK-NEW-00-DR-A-(00)-101 00




This page is intentionally left blank



Proposed Option 2

@

1:200@A1

ANNEX 2

Existing Trees fo be removed. Please refer fo Landscaping Plan
(Locations indicafive not fully surveyed)

Dashed line denotes location of proposed building
footprint approved at planning

Existing garages to be demolished (By
Specialist Demolition Sub Contractor)

DO NOT SCALE

SAFETY HEALTH AND ENVIRONMENTAL
INFORMATION

In addition to the hazards/risks normally associated with the types of work
detailed on this drawing, note the following;

CONSTRUCTION

MAINTENANCE/CLEANING

DECOMMISSIONING/DEMOLITION

Itis assumed thatall works will be carried out by a competent contractor
working, where appropriate, to an approved method statement.

Key

. = Hard Landscaping
. = Soft Landscaping

. = Existing Tree’s Maintained

2 Storey
12 x 1 bed (1 person) Apartments @ 40sqm
12 parking spaces and 3 visitor bays

)
QD
«
D
w
O
Rev. | Date Descripion By |onkd | Aper.
Drawng Sabs  |NEORMATION Y
ATKINS &=
Thorpe Park
Leeds
‘West Yorkshire
L5158

el +44 (0)113306 6000
Fax:+44 (0)113306 6002

wiw akinsglobal.com
 Copyright © Atins Limied (2011)

City of York Council

WmNewbury Avenue Residential
Development

- Proposed Site Plan
Option 2

Authorised

Scale Designed Drawn Checked
1:200 HCH | HCH RJ NH
A1 [11.04.16 |11.04.16 | 12.04.16 | 12.04.16

Draving Number Revision

5124500-ATK-NEW-00-DR-A-(00)-102 00




This page is intentionally left blank



SAFETY HEALTH AND ENVIRONMENTAL
ANNEX 3 DONOTSCALE INFORMATION

In addition to the hazards/risks normally associated with the types of work
detailed on this drawing, note the following;

CONSTRUCTION

MAINTENANCE/CLEANING

DECOMMISSIONING/DEMOLITION

Itis assumed thatall works will be carried out by a competent contractor
working, where appropriate, to an approved method statement.

Key

. = Hard Landscaping
. = Soft Landscaping

‘ = Existing Tree’s Maintained

2 Storey
8 x 1 bed (2 person) Apartments @ 52sqm
8 parking spaces and 2 visitor bays

T abed

Existing Trees to be removed. Please refer fo Landscaping Plan
(Locations indicafive not fully surveyed)
Dashed line denotes location of proposed building
footprint approved at planning
Existing garages to be demolished (By
Specialist Demolition Sub Contractor)
Rev. |Date Descripion By [onkd | Apr
Drawing Status Suiabilty
i INFORMATION B3
Akins Limied
ATKINS ~ E=-
Thorpe Park
Leeds
West Yorkshire
151568

el +44 (0)113306 6000
Fax:+44 (0)113306 6002

wiw akinsglobal.com
Copyright © Atins Limied (2011)

City of York Council

WmNewbury Avenue Residential

Development
Proposed Site Plan
Option 3
Scale Designed Drawn Checked Authorised
Proposed Option 3 1200 | HCH | HeH | Ry | M
@ 12 200 @AT _ mAnl 11,0416 | 1.04.16 | 120416 | 7204.16

5124500-ATK-NEW-00-DR-A-(00)-103 00




This page is intentionally left blank



Proposed Option 4

@

1:200@A1

ANNEX 4

Exisfin

ees fo be removed. Please refer o Landscaping Plan

tionsjindicafive not fully surveyed)

Dashed line denotes location of
proposed building footprint

Existing garages to be demolished (By
Specialist Demolition Sub Contractor)

DO NOT SCALE

SAFETY HEALTH AND ENVIRONMENTAL
INFORMATION

In addition to the hazards/risks normally associated with the types of work
detailed on this drawing, note the following;

CONSTRUCTION

MAINTENANCE/CLEANING

DECOMMISSIONING/DEMOLITION

Itis assumed thatall works will be carried out by a competent contractor
working, where appropriate, to an approved method statement.

Key

. = Hard Landscaping
. = Soft Landscaping

. = Existing Tree’s Maintained

1 Storey
8 x 1 bed (2 person) Bungalows @ 52sqm
8 parking spaces and 2 visitor bays

)
QD
«
D
N
w
Rev. | Date Descripion By |onkd | Aper.
Drawng Sabs  |NEORMATION Y
ATKINS &=
Thorpe Park
Leeds
‘West Yorkshire
L5158

el +44 (0)113306 6000
Fax:+44 (0)113306 6002

wiw akinsglobal.com
Copyright © Atins Limied (2011)

City of York Council

WmNewbury Avenue Residential
Development

- Proposed Site Plan
Option 4

Authorised

S Designed Drawn Crecked
1:200 HCH HCH RJ NH

A1 [11.04.16 |11.04.16 | 12.04.16 | 12.04.16

Draving Number Revision

5124500-ATK-NEW-00-DR-A-(00)-104 00




This page is intentionally left blank



ANNEX 5

es

roposed Site Plan

Existing Vehicle access A \

maintained /
' = R r Proposed
’ HE T
— 1=
Paved Area—#

4

K<
@

7—

Remove existing Hedge, /'
/ grass and fence / A

D>

Proposed Vehicle and

timber fencing

Proposed boundary —
fencingand
pedestrian gate

fencing and
gate's

Proposed parking for
new developmen

i

//\ \
/// \

. Bollard

-
\ - 1\

//\

Grasscrete temporary
parking

<

Proposed

=)
boundary

DO NOT SCALE

X

Grasscrete
eesbisl

X

X

X
o X

X
X

Grasscrete ~
X

\\‘\A“‘Proposed boundar)) |
~fencing and

pedestrian gate | |

Y
Accessib

|~

N
NBN S oups

Proposed parking
space for No 8 with

Proposed
Bin Store

1y

: 200

SAFETY HEALTH AND ENVIRONMENTAL
INFORMATION

In addition to the hazards/risks normally associated with the types of work
detailed on this drawing, note the following;

CONSTRUCTION

MAINTENANCE/CLEANING

DECOMMISSIONING/DEMOLITION

It is assumed that all works will be carried out by a competent contractor
working, where appropriate, to an approved method statement.

Key

) Removed

= Red Line Boundary

= Existing Tree’s Retained

= Grass/Soft Landscaping

= Hard Landscaping

= Existing Tree’s/Planting to be

= Hard-standing Vehicle Surface

Please read in conjunction with landscaping

proposals
J . .
20.06.14 Design Incorporating no 8 Proposals HH PG NH
| Peci .
19.06.14 Re-Design of parking HH RJ NH
H Peci . . )
18.06.14 Re-Design of location of build and bins HH RJ NH
G Peci . . .
17.06.14 Re-Design of location of build and bins HH RJ NH
F Peci .
02.06.14 |Re-Design of landscaping scheme HH | RJ NH
E |07.05.14 Re-Design of scheme
HH | RJ | NH
D |14.0414 Re-Design of design scheme
HH | RJ | NH
C |09.0414 Building footprint revised, site layout amended to
© 7 |suit client/planners comments. HH | RJ | NH
Building footprint revised, site layout amended to suit
B |or0s14 clients comments. HH | RJ NH
Building footprint added, site layout amended to suit
A 20214 and proposed refuse vehicle tracking added. LC HH | RJ
Rev. | Date Description By Chk'd | Appr.
Drawing Status Suitabilityt
Atkins Limited
3100 Century Way
Thorpe Park
Leeds
West Yorkshire
LS158zB

Copyright © Atkins

Limited (2011)

Tel.: +44 (0)113 306 6000
Fax: +44 (0)113 306 6002

www_atkinsglobal.com

Client

City of York Council

Project Title

Newbury Avenue Residential

Development
Drawing Title
Proposed Site Plan

Scale Designed Drawn Checked Authorised

1:200 HCH LC HCH RJ
Original Size Date Date Date Date

A1 Feb14 | Mar14 | Mar14 | Mar14
Drawing Number Revision
5124500-ATK-DWG-(90)-ARC-(90) - 010 J

G abed



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 47 Agenda Item 7

COUNCIL

Executive 29 September 2016

Report of the Director of Place
Portfolio of the Executive Member for Finance and Performance

Disposal of Grove House
Summary

1.  This report seeks an Executive decision to select the highest bidder for
the disposal of the former Older Persons Home (OPH) at Grove House.

Background

2. Grove House is a former 45 bed OPH, which closed on 31% March 2016.
On 29™ October 2015 the Executive resolved to sell the Grove House
site forthwith to generate a capital receipt to support the wider Older
Persons Accommodation Programme.

3.  The property lies just outside the City Walls on the East side of the City,
in a mostly residential area, with York St John University nearby. A site
plan is attached at Annex 1.

4. Interest in the property has been received from various quarters, with 11
bids made to purchase the property which are presented here for a
decision.

Recommendation

5.  That Executive should approve the sale of Grove House to Norstar Real
Estates Limited as the highest bidder for Grove House.

Reason: To achieve the best consideration for the Grove House site,
and facilitate the investment in the Older Persons Accommodation
Programme.

Evaluation Criteria

6.  Given the need for the council to achieve a maximum capital receipt
from the sale of Grove House to fund investment in the Older Persons



Page 48

Accommodation, the recommendation is, therefore, based on the
grounds that the highest and least caveated bid is most likely to achieve
this objective.

Analysis

7. A summary of all bids is attached at Annex 2. The identity of the under
bidders is contained within Confidential Annex 3.

8.  The marketing campaign attracted 11 bids from 9 bidders. 7 of these
bids are conditional upon planning permission being obtained by the
relevant bidders for their respective desired development schemes. The
value of offers ranges from £600k to £1.6m.

9.  The highest bid of £1,610,997 is from Norstar Real Estates Ltd, who are
proposing to convert the existing building to 29 one bedroom flats for
sale or rent. It is expected that affordable housing provision in
accordance with planning policy will be on site. The bid is subject to
obtaining planning permission for their development proposal.

Council Plan

10. The proposals work towards achieving the following Council plan
priorities:

A prosperous city for all - where local businesses can thrive and
residents have good quality jobs, housing and opportunities.

Implications

Finance — The land being sold is held in the General Fund. Executive
agreed in October 2015 to sell Grove House in order to generate a
capital receipt to support the wider Older Persons’ Accommodation
Programme. In July 2015 Executive agreed to contribute up to £4m from
the sale of vacated OPHs to fund future accommodation with care
provision for older people as part of the Older Persons Accommodation
Programme and this receipt of £1.6m will make a significant contribution
to that commitment. The other contribution to date is c£1.8m, as the
General Fund benefit from the sale of Oliver House.

Legal - The Council has statutory powers (under S.123 of the Local
Government Act 1972) to dispose of non-HRA land without the Secretary
of State’s consent for the best consideration reasonably obtainable (or
for less than best consideration where the difference between the price



Page 49

obtained and full value is less than £2 Million where the purpose of the
disposal will contribute to the promotion or improvement of the
economic, environmental or social well-being of the area). Itis
recommended that if it is decided to enter into a contract conditional
upon the purchaser obtaining planning permission for a particular
scheme, that the Contract contains the following provisions standard to
conditional sale contracts:

(i)  That the Sale Price is fixed/specified in the Contract (with no
ability for the purchaser to deduct costs from the sale price
after signature of contract (such as the costs of obtaining
planning permission or the cost of complying with any
Planning Obligation(s) imposed under any S.106 Agreement
required by the Local Planning Authority or the cost of
complying with any conditions imposed by the Local
Planning Authority)

(i) That the purchaser be under an obligation to apply for
Planning Permission for their proposed scheme within a
specified period from exchange of contracts and that they will
use reasonable endeavours to obtain that Planning
Permission on terms satisfactory to them by a further
specified date, including entering into any S.106 Agreement
required by the Local Planning Authority as a condition of
granting planning permission.

(iii)  Ability for either the Council or the purchaser to terminate the
Contract if the Buyer has not obtained Planning Permission
on satisfactory terms by a specified date

If the Contract does not contain a provision restricting the property to a
particular use (or preventing the property from being used for specific
purposes) then the purchaser/future owner will be entitled to
use/develop the property in any manner they choose in the future
subject to obtaining planning permission for development/change in use.

Property - All implications are included in this report.

Housing — The opportunity to achieve affordable housing on this site as
part of the developer’s section 106 obligations is welcomed as it will be
an attractive and easily accessible location for such accommodation.
Further more, a relatively modest housing development on this site
would be more in keeping with neighbouring uses including the Ann
Harrison’s Aimshouses immediately behind the current building.

Human Resources — None



Page 50

Risk Management
11. Failure to secure a significant capital receipt may impact upon the
business case for Older People’s Accommodation project.

12. There is a risk of any scheme not getting planning permission.

Contact Details

Author: Chief Officer Responsible for the report:
Tim Bradley Tracey Carter - Assistant Director of Finance,
Asset Manager Property and Procurement

Property Services

Report N Date 20 September
Approved 2016

Specialist Implications Officers
Debbie Mitchell — Principal Accountant
Gerard Allen — Senior Property Solicitor

Ward Affected: Guildhall All

For further information please contact the author of the report
Background Papers:

Annexes:

Annex 1 - Plan showing the location of the site.

Annex 2 — Summary of all bids.

Confidential Annex

Annex 3 — List identifying the bidders.



Grove House Elderly Peoples Home

T E00642

Asset & Property Management

H{YORK

CBSS
Asset & Property

Management




This page is intentionally left blank



ANNEX 2 - SUMMARY OF ALL BIDS

City of York Council

Page 53

Sale of Grove House Annex 2 Schedule of Offers

Grove House, 148 - 150 Penley's Grove Street, York, YO31 7PN

Party

Norstar Real Estates Limited

(or SPV controlled by NREL)

Unconditional £
Projected completion*
£750,997

Subject to :

1 ground investigations
*56 days from receipt of
legal documentation

£750,000

Subject to:

1 Cap of £30,000 in
respect of the knotweed
Wording unclear.

* 8 weeks

£1,000,000

No scheme described but
understood to be
conversion of present
building to low cost
rooms in HMO form for
rent

* 8 weeks

£750,000
Community led residential
conversion scheme
Stated social value to
£287,000 pa

* phased from date of
practical completion to
backstop of 3 years.

Conditional £
Projected completion**

£1,610,997
Subject to:
1 Planning permission
for conversion of existing
building to 29 self contained
one bedroomed apartments
each of c400 sq ft (37 sq m)
for sale or rent.
2 Per unconditional bid
** Assume 10 - 12 months

£1,550,050
Subject to:
1 planning permission for 100
new student cluster bedrooms
2 No off site contributions or
$278 costs
3 Ground investigations
** Assume 10 - 12 months

£1,052,000

Subject to:

1 Planning permission for 14

new residential units with no
affordable homes requirement

2 Per unconditional offer

3 No allowance for S106/CIL costs
** Assume 10 - 12 months

£1,050,000

No further bid
Subject to:
1 planning permission for un
quantified number of new Cat 11
Sheltered units
2 Available vacant building
credits
** Assume 10 - 12 months

£1,000,251
1 Planning permission for 26
social housing units
2 Clarification of S106/CIL costs
3 Continued treatment of
knotweed by CYC until
completion.
** April 2018?

£693,000

Subject to:

Planning permission for 20 x 2
bedroomed flats

** Not defined

£600,000
Subject to :
Planning permission for cluster
apartments of 70 rooms on 3 floors



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 55

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 57 Agenda Item 8

v,

Executive 29 September 2016

Report of the Director of Place

Portfolio of the Executive Member for Finance and Performance

Proposed Long Term Leases — Fishergate Postern Tower and Ovington
Cricket Club, Little Knavesmire.

Summary

1. This report seeks an Executive decision on granting 2 long term leases
to Friends of York Walls at Fishergate Postern Tower and Ovington
Cricket Club at Little Knavesmire

Recommendations

2. The Executive are requested to agree to the letting of Fishergate
Postern to The Friends of York Walls (a charitable incorporated
organisation) for a Term of 30 years at a peppercorn rent in accordance
with the lease terms as set out in the Council’s Asset Transfer Policy.

Reason: To enable an unused scheduled ancient monument to be
utilised and improved.

3. The Executive agree to grant a new lease to Ovington Cricket Club for a
Term of 35 years at an initial rent of £580 per annum (with an Retail
Price Index increase every 5 years)

Reason: In order for the club to continue a long established playing
association on Little Knavesmire

Background
Fishergate Postern Tower

4. Fishergate Postern Tower is a 3 storey Grade 1 listed scheduled
ancient monument which dates back to the 16" century. It forms part of
the city walls at the junction of Piccadilly and Lead Mill Lane. Access to
the upper floors is by way of a narrow spiral staircase only and there
are no utility services connected to the building.



Page 58

5. In 2011 the Council was approached by The Friends of York Walls
(FOYW) to let the property on a long lease with the aim to turn the
tower into a visitor attraction/meeting place with a small cafe. This
proposal was supported by the City Archaeologist. The reasoning for a
long lease was to enable the group to apply for funding to undertake
capital works to improve and restore the tower.

6. In September 2011 Cabinet, allocated £20,000 towards making the
tower wind and watertight. This money has not yet been spent. It is
proposed that this will be allocated to FOYW once they are the tenant.

7. A 30 year lease has been agreed with FOYW in accordance with the
Council’s Community Asset Transfer Policy. It will bring into beneficial
use a building which has been vacant and unused for many years. The
lease will permit FOYW to operate the building as a public visitor
attraction facility with associated gift shop and community space but the
lease does not oblige the tenant to open the building to the public. The
plan attached (Annex 1) shows the extent of the proposed letting
outlined in red with a right of access shown shaded yellow. The lease
will oblige the Council as landlord to maintain and repair the structure
and exterior of the building in return for FOYW paying the Council a
service charge capped at £500 per annum. The lease will oblige FOYW
to maintain and repair the interior non-structural parts of the building.

Advantages

e |t brings into beneficial use a building which has been vacant and
unused for many years.

e Enables a coordinated approach to be made to seek funding to
install services into the building and allow it to be sympathetically
refurbished and reopened to the public.

Disadvantages

e Such a letting to the voluntary group will not generate any rental
income for the Council.

Ovington Cricket Club

8. Ovington Cricket Club currently have a 21 year lease which expired on
18 July 2016. The club has however played on the same site since
1936. The lease covers a plot of land being the site of the cricket
pavilion and the use of the cricket pitch as shown on the attached
plan.(Annex 2)



10.

11.

Page 59

The original air raid shelter which acted as the pavilion has been
removed and replaced with a brick built modern structure built at the
expense of the cricket club and extended over the years. The club has
also constantly improved the playing surface at their own expense.

The club has also been granted planning permission under
14/02205/FUL to extend the pavilion with a 2 storey extension. This will
require a small area of land adjacent to the pavilion and classed as
Public Open Space to be incorporated into the lease. Permission is
required to advertise a proposed disposal of Public Open Space under
S.123 of the Local Government Act 1972.

The club has requested a long lease of 35 years plus a small increase
in land let in order to apply for grants to improve their facilities and to
continue playing cricket on their long established site

Advantages

12.

This will enable the club to have a sustainable future and to be able to
meet funder’s requirements for grant aid

Disadvatages

13.

A small amount of additional land will be taken out of public use

Consultation

14.

15.

16.

Fishergate Postern Tower

Friends Of York Walls have publicised the project in the local press,
website and social media. They have opened the building on a number
of occasions since 2011 and have 25 planned open days during 2016.
Since 2012 they have had a ‘Sponsor a Stone initiative’ to raise funds
towards the refurbishment and reopening of the tower. The current total
stands close to £7,000

Ovington Cricket Club

Discussions have been held with Parks & Open Spaces and Sports &
Active Leisure and they have confirmed that the continuation of the
lease and the improvement of the facilities are complimentary to the
Councils Health and Well-being strategies.

Section 123 of the Local Government Act 1972 requires that before any
‘open space’ land is disposed of (including pursuant to a lease), the
proposed disposal is advertised in a local newspaper and that due
consideration is given to any objections or other comments received
from the public. ‘Open Space’ includes any land used for the purposes



Page 60

of public recreation. If the land is currently (or has recently been) used
by the public for recreation then a formal S123 consultation will need to
be undertaken to advertise a proposed disposal of Open Space for the
small additional area identified on the plan.

Council Plan for 2015 - 2019

17. Under the Council Plan these proposal will assist in supporting;

e A prosperous city for all
o Local residents enjoy a facility to promote creativity and the
well being of those in the neighbourhood.
o Residents can enjoy use of a building which is part of the
city’s unique heritage and be included in a range of activities.
¢ A focus on frontline services
o Everyone has access to opportunities regardless of their
background
o Residents are encouraged and supported to live healthily
¢ A council that listens to residents
Engaging with the community to provide creative space for
local residents

Implications

18.

e Financial — Fishergate Postern Tower - The proposed letting
will facilitate improvements being undertaken to a council asset
with a council outlay of £20,000. The asset however will not
generate a rental income.

e Ovington Cricket Club — There will be a small increase in annual
income from the slightly larger area to be leased.(£197)

e Human Resources (HR) - none
e Equalities - none
e Legal -

(i) Fishergate Postern Tower — if the Council does give a grant or
loan of £20,000 (or another amount) to FOYW towards the
cost of repair works, it is recommended that this be recorded
with a formal Grant Agreement specifying what purpose the
money can only be used for and in what circumstances the
money will be repayable by FOYW to the Council.



Page 61

(i) Ovington Cricket Club:
Under S.123 of the Local Government Act 1972:

Before disposing (including granting a lease) of ‘open space’
the Council must advertise the proposed disposal in two
consecutive editions of a local newspaper and give due
consideration to any objections or other comments received in
response to the advertisement. ‘Open Space’ includes any
land used for the purposes of public recreation. It is
understood that the public may use this land for recreation
since it forms part of Micklegate Stray. The land in question is
unoccupied and undeveloped and therefore could fall within
the definition of open space. Itis considered that before the
Council grants the lease the proposal should be advertised
and any objections or other comments should be properly
considered. The land is part of Micklegate Stray, which was
vested in the Council by the Micklegate Stray Act 1907 with an
obligation on the Council to maintain Micklegate Stray as open
space for recreation by the city’s residents. The 1907 Act
does expressly state that the Council can lease out parts of
Micklegate Stray for various purposes, including for use as a
racecourse.

Crime and Disorder — none
Information Technology (IT) - none
Property — contained in the report
Public Health — none

Planning — Fishergate Postern Tower Scheduled Ancient
Monument Consent will be required for the alterations and
installation of public utilities.

Risk Management

19. Fishergate Postern Tower — The new lease is not subject to Scheduled
Ancient Monument Consent for the alterations.If consent is not
obtained, whilst the future plans for the use of the tower may have to
change, FOYW have indicated the feasibility of creating the visitor
attraction should not be affected.

The risk therefore is low and is currently being managed well by FOYW.

20. Ovington Cricket Club — As stated in paragraph 10, the proposed new
pavilion requires the additional land. If this was not available, the club



Page 62

would still take a new lease and remain in its current building, although
this would reduce the quality of the facilities for use by the club and
others.

The risk is considered to be low and there is an alternative way forward
as detailed above.

Contact Details

Author: Officer Responsible for the report:
Graham Hogben Tracey Carter
Property Surveyor Assistant Director — Finance, Property and
Property Services Procurement
01904 553346
Report Date 20 September 2016

Approved

Specialist Implications Officer(s)
Legal

Brian Gray & Gerard Allen

Legal Services

Tel N0.01904 552004

Finance

Clive Christison

Senior Accounting Technician
Tel No 01904 551198

Wards Affected: Guildhall, Micklegate All

For further information please contact the author of the report
Background Papers:
Annexes

Annex 1 — Site Plan Fishergate Postern Tower
Annex 2 — Lease Plan — Ovington Cricket Club



Page 63

riccadiyPjccadil |y
HouseHouse

Fishergate
rfower

]
[]
Q
z
2
=z
Q.
éé
2
b N
= CITY OF .
YORK Fishergate Postern Tower W%#E
& COUNCIL S
SCALE 1:500 DRAWNBY: CC DATE:  18/03/2014
CBSS Originating Group: Drawing No.
Asset & Propert Asset & Property Management 847
Managempenty Reproduced from the Ordnance Survey with the permission of the Controller of Her Majesty’s Stationery Office © Crown copyright.

Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown copyright and may lead to prosecution or civil proceedings.
City of York Council 100020818




This page is intentionally left blank



ANNEX 2 =

Allotment Gardens

Micklegate Stray

KNAVESMIRE

— N
=2 cITY OF . . . : H
YORK Little Knavesmire Ovington Cricket Pitches W<$>E
; COUNCIL S
SCALE 1:1,500 DRAWNBY: DH DATE: 20/05/2016

CBSS Originating Group: A t & P rt M t Drawing No.
Ssse rope anagemen
Assot & Property perty Manag E00796_B06_2
Reproduced from the Ordnance Survey with the permission of the Controller of_Her Majesty’s S1a1i_onery Office © Crown copyright.

Management Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown copyright and may lead to prosecution or civil proceedings.
City of York Council 100020818




This page is intentionally left blank



Page 67 Agenda Item 9

YORK

“ZIS  ciTy oF
& COUNCIL

Executive 29 September 2016

Report of the Director of Place
Portfolio of the Executive Member for Finance and Performance

Application for Community Right to Bid under the Localism Act 2011 —
White Rose House, Wheldrake

Summary

1.  This report presents an application to list White Rose House, 79 Main
Street, Wheldrake York, YO19 6AA, owned by the Girlguiding
Association (the Owners), as an Asset of Community Value (ACV)
under the provisions of the Localism Act.

2.  The application has been made by Wheldrake Parish Council and was
initially reported to the Executive Member for Finance and Performance
Decision Session in July. The Council received a submission from the
owner, after the report had been published, which did not allow the full
consideration of the evidence base. The report was therefore deferred
to a subsequent meeting on the 15" August 2016. At that meeting the
Executive Member felt that there was not sufficient detailed information
on the extent of any community use to enable him to determine the
application. The Executive Member asked the Owners to provide more
information and the application be referred to Executive for
consideration. The Owner has now provided this information and this is
set out in the report.

Recommendations

3. Executive are asked to decide whether to list White Rose House,
Wheldrake as an Asset of Community Value

Reason: To ensure full consideration of the community uses of the
property.

Background

4.  The Community Right to Bid legislation exists to ensure that property
assets (land and buildings) which are currently used (or have recently
been used) for the benefit of the local communities are not disposed of



Page 68

without the local community being given a fair opportunity to bid for
these assets when they are put on the open market. The right includes
public, private and voluntary sector assets. The Council are responsible
for deciding whether applications to list assets are valid and comply with
the legislation.

Wheldrake Parish Council has nominated White Rose House for
inclusion on the list. Parish Councils are statutorily entitled to make
nominations. The nomination appears at Annex 1.

The property is owned and occupied by Girl Guiding North Yorkshire
South, a charity supporting activities for girls and young women. In
accordance with the Regulations, the freehold owner has been
informed in writing that an application has been made. The initial
response from them is at Annex 2.

The Legislation

The statutory test against which the application needs to be judged is
that either

An actual current principal use (rather than merely an ancillary use) of
the building/land furthers social well being or the social interests of the
local community and there is a realistic prospect that a principal use of
the property (not necessarily the same use as present) will continue
which furthers the social well-being or social interests of the local
community (whether or not in the same way as at present)

OR

In the recent past a principal use of the property has furthered the
social well-being or social interests of the local community and there is
a realistic prospect that within the next 5 years a principal use of the
property (not necessarily the same use as previously) will again further
the social well-being or social interests of the local community (not
necessarily in the same way as previously).

Regulation 3 and paragraph 1 of Schedule 1 to the ACV Regulations
states that a property used wholly or partly as a ‘residence’ is ‘land
which is not of community value’ (and therefore may not be listed).
Paragraph 2 of Schedule 1 of the ACV Regulations defines residence
as a building use or partly used as a residence which includes where it
is a hotel or is principally used as accommodation by paying occupants.
It is believed that the building is not principally used as residential



10.

11.

12.

13.

Page 69

accommodation by paying occupants so it is considered that the
property is not a ‘residence’ for the purposes of the relevant legislation.

The judgement of whether an asset meets these criteria is a subjective
one. The legislation does not define the nature or extent of any
qualifying community use but leaves this decision to the discretion of
the responsible body (CYC).

If Executive decide to list White Rose House as an Asset of Community
Value the legislation then requires the owners to notify the Council of
their intention to sell the building. There would then be a 6 week
moratorium on the sale during which time the Parish Council would
need to register their intention to bid for the property. If they do so then
the owner would need to allow them 6 months to make that bid. At the
end of the moratorium, any community bid would be considered with
any other bids received for the site by the landowners. At that point the
landowner will be free to sell the property to whoever they wish.

Community Use

The Parish Council (the Applicant) claims that the property should be
listed as an ACV as it is available for hire for both day and residential
use and provides a range of accommodation suitable for community
use. They also state that the property has been used by the community
in the recent past for a range of village activities including yoga classes,
coffee mornings, Women'’s Institute meetings, birthday parties and
community meetings.

The owners state that this community use has been minimal over the
last few years and only increased slightly following closure of the
Village Hall for extensive repairs in 2015. The primary use of the
property is for Guiding groups, for residential and other meetings.
These uses are from groups across the region and elsewhere in the
country. There have been no residential stays from groups other than
GirlGuiding in the last 4 years and the other use can be summarised as
follows.

The property has been used by the local community over the last three
years and this is broken down below

2013 - Regular local groups — 17 bookings per month
One off bookings by local groups — 11 in the year
One off bookings by others — 2 days during the year



14.

15.

16.

17.

18.

Page 70

2014 — Regular local groups — 13 bookings per month
One off bookings by local groups — 11 in the year
One off bookings by others — 2 days during the year

2015 — Regular local groups — 14 bookings per month (inc 5
due to Village Hall being closed)
One off bookings by local groups — 8 in the year (inc 2
due to Village Hall being closed)
One off bookings by others — 3 days during the year

Girl Guide Use

The information provided by the owner identifies the main use of the
property by Girlguiding groups, locally, county and wider and this is
evidenced by Groups who use the site both during the day-time and for
residential stays as follows

2013 — 24 residential stays — (6 from units outside the County)
2014 — 18 residential stays — (3 from outside the County)
2015 — 29 residential stays — (9 from outside the County)

In addition the property is used for the following activities — all in
connection with GirlGuiding

. Meetings of the Council Executive

. Training and competition events

. Storage for County and camping equipment and County
Archives

The Building is clearly used by the local community but it is also clear
that this is not its main purpose.

Consultation

The Owners have commented on the application and their views are
contained in the report.

Council Plan
This report relates closely to the following corporate priority

A Council that listens to residents



Page 71

Implications
19

. Financial Compensation may be payable by the Council to the
owner of any property which is listed. The figure is limited to costs or
losses incurred only whilst the asset is on the list and could include
such items as legal expenses for appeals, costs relating to the delay
in the sale (such as maintenance, security, utility costs, loss of value)

. Human Resources (HR) - none
. Equalities, Crime and Disorder and IT - none

. Legal- Organisations falling within any of the following categories are
eligible to submit an ACV nomination relating to property within their
local area:

a) a parish council

b) a charity, non-profit making company or community interest
company with a local connection to the nominated property

C) an unincorporated association which has at least 21 members
registered to vote in the local area

The organisations who have submitted the nominations covered by this
report fall within the above criteria and are therefore entitled to submit
their ACV nominations.

Paragraph 7-8 of the report contains the statutory definition of ‘land of
community value’. If the listing authority considers that a nominated
property falls within that definition then it must include the property on
its ACV register.

If the ACV listing is agreed the owner has a right to ask for a review of
that decision and this must be undertaken by an officer of appropriate
seniority who did not take any part in the original listing decision.

. Property - all property issues included in this report
. Other - none

Risk Management

20. There are no significant risks.



Contact Details

Author:

Tracey Carter
Assistant Director —
Finance Assets and
Procurement

Philip Callow

Head of Asset and
Property Management
Property Services
553360

Page 72

Chief Officer Responsible for the report:
Neil Ferris
Director of Place

Report v | Date 20 September
Approved 2016

Specialist Implications Officers
Gerard Allen — Senior Property Solicitor

Wards Affected: Wheldrake

All

For further information please contact the author of the report

Annexes

Annex 1 — White Rose House, Wheldrake — application to add to the list of

community assets

Annex 2 — Response from the Girlguiding North Yorkshire South



Page 73

ASSETS OF COMMUNITY VALUE NOMINATION FORM

If you need assistance completing this form, then please refer to the guidance document which can be downloaded

Y

from the website shown below or alternatively call 01904 553360

Section 1

About the property to be nominated

Name of Property:

WHITE ROSE HOUSE

Address of Property:

73 MAIN STREET, WHELDRAKE, YORK

Postcode:

YO19 6AA

Property Owner’s Name:

GIRLGUIDING ASSOCIATION

Address:

79 MAIN STREET, WHELDRAKE, YORK

Postcode:

Y019 6AA

Telephone Number:

Current Occupier’s Name:

GIRLGUIDING ASSOCIATION

Section 2

About your community organisation

Name of Organisation; WHELDRAKE PARISH COUNCIL
Title: MRS

First Name: SALLY

Surname: LOOK

Position in Organisation:

Clerk

ORK

Email Address:

THE OLD POST OFFICE, 72 MAIN STREET, WHELDRAKE, YORK

Address:
Postcode: YO19 6AA
Telephone Number: 1504449182

Organisation type:
Click in field for options

| PARISH COUNCIL

Organisation size

How many members do you have?




Page 74

Section 3
Supporting information for nomination

Any information entered in this section only may be copied and passed onto the owner of the property you
are nominating. Definition of an asset of community value can be found in the guidance document.

Why do you feel the property is an asset of community value? Please give as much information as possible.

It is avilable for hire for both day and residential use and comprises: Large hall, Small hall, Washroom with
toilets, washbasins and two showers,Drying room for boots and wet weather clothing, Bedroom suitable
for use by disabled person and their carer,30 Camp Beds with cell foam pads, one pillow and fleece
cover,Fully-equipped and refurbished kitchen,Gas central heating, Tarmac car park/play space to the rear
of the building

Section 4
Boundary of Property

What do you consider to be the boundary of the property? Please give as much detail/be as descriptive as
possible. Please include a plan.

'White Rose House' is not a house in the conventional sense, but the Victorian school which was converted
to make a centre for the Girl Guides who use it for guiding activities. It can also be hired for village
activities, and is used for yoga classes, coffee mornings, Wi meetings, birthday parties, community
meetings and so on. Map attached.Ordinance Survey Map 105 Grid Reference 682450

Section 5
Attachment checklist

X Copy of group constitution (if you are a constituted group)

@ Name and home address of 21 members registered to vote in nomination area (if group is not constituted)

X] Site boundary plan (if possible)

Section 6
Declaration

I can confirm that to the best of my knowledge the information contained in this nomination form is complete

and accurate.

Signed: Dated:

2'%/ : 13/ /%

Please e-mail your completed fori.. 3 property services@york zov.uk or post to:
Asset and Property Management

City of York Council

West Offices

Station Rise

York

YOl 6GA




Page 75

White Rose House, Wheldrake

Boundary Description

Within the boundary is a tarmac car park/play space to the rear of the
building (with gates). The building fronts directly onto the footpath on
Main Street, Wheldrake and it has walls round its perimeter to separate
it from neighbouring properties. On one side is the Church Yard and on
the other side is a residential house (77 Main Street). The driveway to
the rear car park is to the left of the building and there is a alley /
footpath on the right side of the building. | have attached photo's of the
front of the property.









Page 78

9%Z91G "ON Auey) paiaisiday
ZELSTP 0610 2L
0SYT89 90udIRIY PUH GO dBJ\ Ad9AING doURUIPI( ‘Y16 LEOA YI0A ‘peoy uoljew ‘a1e8Ia1seoUny 8€ ‘siead g SSIW
Aieja.a0as s8upjoog asnoH asoy aUYM
VV9 6TOA

N0 A AU ‘DN RIP[IYAA 192.11S UIBIA 6L

ISNOH 9S0Y NIYAA

buipinbpin

MOFD IM “YIA0ISID IM




MopuIm sse|b pauiejs palojsal AimaN

Page 79

€2220.L Y0610 10BjU0D Buoyds|s} ‘abejiiA Aquebioy ] ~ 3sipoylap

'shepung weg ssey\ “Aquebioy |
0} peol ay} uo ‘Aisjseuo|y sjBuLE) ‘AIold 19)0IUL — JIjOYIeD UBWOY

"pIBOCB1IOU Y2JNyo 8y} uo
pajeslpul Se $80IAI8S "9MBIPIAYAA ‘U2INYD S,UdjeH IS — puejbul jo yainyo

sayalnysn

‘[exdsoy siyj e Juswipede Iy Ue Sl 818YL €L€LEY $06L0 suoydaje)
'IH8 LEOA HOA ‘Peoy UoUIBBIA '[e)idSOH 1o1sIq oA — [epdsoH

'sinoy a)ep

0} dn o} o8yd‘sawi Buiuado paywi| '$ZzZ809 0610 duoydale | “BxeIPIBUAN
‘Joalis ulely uo A1ebins e aaey 9o139e.d [B2Ipa|N UOIBUIAIT — S10300(]

siapely |esIpay

Wooy 19/ S)seng pajgesia

'spaq dwed uo ‘(synpe Buipnjour) ajdoad og 0} dn des|s ues pue sbunssw
awfep Joj aidoad QO JO WNWIXEW B DJEPOWLLIOIIE UBD 9SNOH 9S0Y SNUM

Ajoeden

'SUISEQUSEM pUE S)9|I0} [2A3] J8MO| Se
IloMm se sioje|pes ainjesadwia) 8oBUNS MO| Ylim payl usaq Ajusoal sey ji pue
‘uaipliyo BunoA Aqg esn Joj payns |jam Apenoled osie si 8sSnoH 9s0y S)IUAA

‘wool Jam ajinsus paddinbe Aj|n) e pue Jaies ay} Joj paq e ‘paq a|geisnipe
Ue sainjesj pue asnoH 8s0yY SIUAA JB Saljijioe) Sy} O} UORIPPE MaU & SI JaJed
l1ay) pue jsanb pejqesip e Aq asn 1o} paubisep wooipaq ay ] “paseduw Ajjensia
8y} JOj ||qeyns os|e s pue e|qissaode Jieyd@aum Ajny s| Buiping aaue ey

uaip|iys Bunok g sysanb pajqesiq



Page 80

‘Buifeys
850U} 0} }da0xe 8SNoH @S0y 8lYAA 0} 8oudpuodsaLIod Aue puas jou op ases|d
aosuapuodsalion

‘9Jes 10} 3|qe|IBA. S| SIIUBANOS SSNOH @S0y S)IUAA JO UONOBI8S
w.__-._ﬂb__._om

‘abe||in @yelpjayp ul [eubis e a6 o) s|qe aq
jou Aew noA pue Jood Alea st uodadsal suoyd ajiqow jey) ajou aseald ‘auoyd
8y} Jeau }s|| 8y} uo pajeslpul se apew s||eo Aue Joj Aed ases|d '0888PY ¥0610
S| Jaquwinu auoyds@) a8yl ‘|ley |ews a8y} ul suoyds|e} B S BJBYL

auoydsje |

"papirold ooq 8y} Ui SIy) piodal
ases|d ‘Aejs Inok uy Alues piay aq pinoys aopoeid aul Y 19)o0d 8y} Jesu
USYONY ayj ul Joxuelq aJy B S| 818y ‘AgJeau [lem ayj Uo SuoioNAsUl [N YlIM
[[BY SoUBAHUS U} Ul [[EM SY} UO S| LWIBIE 81l YL "WOOIJYSEM SU)} Jeau Joop apIs
8y} YO Bulp|ing By} jo JOOP UIBW B} BIA S| JIXS B4l BY) ‘il B JO JusAe auy} u|

suonnesaid alid

"USyoyy 8y} ul Xxog piy jsiid e s| alay) esn
Kousbiawse Jo4 Uy pIv Isiid umo Jiay) Buug o} peoadxe ale siepea dnoig
Py 18114

‘paljddns ale sjeusjew Bujues|d Jayjo (v 'sJaul| uig pue ‘sjjol 1810}
‘pinbi] dn Buiysem ‘sjemo) ‘syjojoysip ‘s|emo} es) UMO JIay} epinoid o) pasu
siopsIA “Alex00u0 Jo Ajusid pue sezealy abply e ‘Jex000 seb e sey usyopy syl

"S2SED
molid pue sbeq Buidas|s umo 1oy} Buug o} pasu |im sioysia ‘sidoad pg 0} dn
o} ssd88|) pue moj|id auo ‘sped weoy |20 yum spaq dwed ase aiayl ybnouyy

Bung o3 sbuiyy

‘pajonJisul se Aay ay) uinyal
ases|d ||ey |[ews ay} Ul 8ABa| pue Is|pjosyo ayy aje|dwod aseald ainyedsp uQ

‘leailie JnoA aiojeq syeem om) Aiejeioas Buyooq sy Uim aq pinoys siy)
‘JuswAed jo aoueleq noA jo 1diaoal uo noA 0} Juss aq ||IM asnoy By Joj Aay v
Buipedaq pue Bulauly

uoljewlojuj asnoy

L1109 /G210 duoydafa] s|qejieAe seyoeoo
Jo s82ZIs Jo A1aLeA B )M ‘au1y Yorod sjeAld — py Juspuadapu) sauloy

‘@eIplRYM Wolj Jed Aq sajnuiw
0l Al@iewixoidde ‘piojin je 19InQ Jsubisaq usio) JNYMYOIA Y] WOl 3aam
e sfep / suni3ioA 3siid Aq pajesado aoinias apu pue yied e — apiy B yied

066€€9
70610 auoydeje] ‘Aepsuei] Aq psjesado Aepinjes o} Aepuoiy wolj siuso Ajo
MIOA 0} axelpeya Bugosuuos aoinies snq olgnd Jejnbal e si eiay) ~ sasng

Modsuea |

‘wdog 'zl -weg Aepinjeg

‘wdpg g-wee Aepli4 0} Aepuopy uadQ "SISRN0ISOD Ul PRIBN)IS ~ 39140 1SOd
‘auljuo apew

SI JapJo By} Jl 8SNOH 8S0Y BYYA O} JaAIRp |IB |Iim Asy ] ‘(Aq|eS ul 810)s 0S8 |

B OS|E S| 818U}) YIOA PuUNOIE pue ul pajedo| — s, Ainqsules g epsy ‘0asa)

‘wdg-weg Aepung ‘wdg-we, Aepinjeg o) Aepuoyy uadp ‘sjenusssa
dlseq 3y} $H00}S pue ayeIP|SYAA 1984S UIB|A UO p3jen)is — SI8)naison

G1L687Z LS/L0 (3L AsjesH Jojad Jayoing

‘shepli4 pue sAepsan] uo s}siA Uew ysy sy} pue sAeplid

pue SABPUON UO 3BIPISYAA SHSIA UBA § J8yojng ay) — UL Ysij pue Jayojng
22130 Jsod @ sdoys

uonewlojuj |90



dewnynyy jo Aseunon

sueh
AqueBioy |

ned

a peovng sYRIPIBUM, 40 una]

N sy insedy

Page 81

adiogiuewdon
D

duees b " 1.—:\_ WOl Ao
abpug Asmupy \
piojuRIS L3t v\\ Sty

|\Lb.n 188104 ag®
= Ut uolyoms ¢

spuupding A
uvogngy

pues -
Jpeybuikeiog . v\.\_.» . —— ..
: o . 1 A dewine

WEREG .~ bl &l

dejy uoneoson]

‘Bale [00] BU) Ul }salajul jo saoe|d
JNOgE UOIIeLIoUl 3J0W SBAIB 8SNOH 80y S)IYAA 1B [[BY |[BwS 8y} ul Jop|o}

‘(Jjooyos
ay} Jesu) axelppupn ‘AemybiH peosg uo este Aejd sua.ip|iydo B sI ai8yl
ealy Aejd

"uoljeLLIOUl JaYUN}
Jo} N DIO'ISNI-al|PIIM-3JIUSHIOA MMM 885 'SISMOj} plm pue splig
eibiw Jsjuim Joj Apejnoed — aaiasal ainjeu juelodw] Ue si pue JusmuaQ
lamoT 8y} jJo smopesw Jajem pue S)ueq 8y} Jo s)sisuod sbu| axelplaupp

sbu| ayeiplaym

SN AOD AI]S8I0] MMM 89S UoHjeW.IojUI
alow lJo4 ‘saldenng pue sieq ‘1esp Mmojes Buipnjoul ‘aypim jo Aleuea
Spim B 0} aWoy ale pue uolssiwwo) Aisaio ay) Aq pebeuew aie spoom ay |

SPOOA ) eP|ayM

“N"00"}IOASISIL} MMM
¥sIA  ‘sgigelewy  sng  Buipnjoul  uonewsojul  [eonoesd se  em se
SJUSA® |e10ads puB SUOOBLIE JOJSIA JO Uljeam S} NIOA JN0ge 20w JNo puly 0

‘leansa4 BupjiA [enuue
8y} Buipnpur teshk ayj noybnolyy s|eAlss) pue sjusae |eroads Jo Jaquinu
e 0} }soy she|d 0s|e YI0A ‘81jua) YIAIO PUB Wnasnip ase) ‘wnasniy Aemjiey
[BUOIEN 8Y} SB UoNns SWNSSNW pue So|qWEYS 8yl PuB JeMol S,pJoylD
‘JBJSUI\ MIOA Se yons says ouojsiy Buipnjoul ‘op pue a@as 0} sbuyy Buiisalsiul
JO |IN} SI PUB ‘8SNOH 8S0Y 8)IYAA WOl Sajiw g Isnl S| YJOA Jo Ao Jusioue ay |

(saliw 8) S40A

op o} sbuly|



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 83 ANNEX 2

2 Turton Square

Brayton

Selby

Y03 9EB
Tim Bradley
City of York Council

4 August 2016
Bear Sir

White Rose House — Asset of Community Value Hearing

I am writing as a trustee of White Rose House to state our objections to the building being added to
the list of Assets of Community Value.

White Rose House is owned by Girlguiding North Yorkshire South, a charity supporting activities for
girls and young women, It is held in trust by our national association. The primary purpose of the
building is to provide a venue for overnight residential activities for our members, a meeting place
for the necessary planning, trainings and administrative meetings and finally as a place of storage for
a equipment and the County archive.

The hall is also used for community activities, yoga, church events etc however these are very much
a secondary roie to the Guiding activities. The community activities have increased in the past twelve
months as the village hall was out of commission, we were pleased to be of service to community
and to provide the resource when it was needed. Now the village hall is has been repaired, the
commenity use will reduce back tc a more sporadic basis.

We do not foresee any reason why we would wish to sell the property in the foreseeabie future
however as trustees we are bound to try and ensure the very best situation for our members. The
property becoming an asset of community value would provide an unnecessary hindrance to a
efficient sale and if the sale was required to purchase an alternative property for a similar purpose, it
wauld effectively prevent that as the timescales would hinder cashflow

We support the concept of the legislation however we do not believe that White Rose House is
crucial to the well being of the village. There is already a village hall, there are sufficient covenants in
the deeds of the property to prevent it being used for anything detrimental to the Church or near
neighbours. Adding White Rose House to the list would not ultimately benefit the community and it
could harm the future opportunities for our charity.

if you have any further queries please do not hesitate to contact me.

Yours sincerely

Judith Beltamy

County Commissioner Girlguiding North Yorkshire South



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 85 Agenda Item 10

YORK

“ZIX  ciTy oF
S COUNCIL

Executive 29 September 2016
Report of the Director of Adult Social Care
Portfolio of the Executive Member for Adult Social Care and Health

Progress towards a new operating model for Adult Social Care

Summary

1. This report provides an update on the progress to develop a new operating
model for Adult Social Care. It highlights key developments and identifies a
proposal for resourcing the next stage of work.

Recommendations

e That the Executive note progress made towards the new operating
model, presented previously as part of the budget proposals.

e That the Executive approve the proposal to procure external support
and internal project management to further develop and implement the
model.

e That the Executive approve use of funding already set aside of up to
£360k for procurement of external support and an internal adult social
care senior project lead grade 11 for 12 months on the basis that this
capacity is required to deliver a operating model that underpins
recurrent savings of over £1.2 million.

Reason: To update the Executive on the development of the Adult Social
Care operating model intended to support people to enjoy healthy,
active and independent lives. To propose the procurement of
support to help design and implement this model.

Background

2. Over the past 3 months, progress has been made in identifying and
articulating an operating model for Adult Social Care. This has included
working with partner organisations in NHS, community and voluntary
services and the leadership group within the council. We are now in a
position to articulate the model. This is detailed in Appendix 1.



Page 86

3. The proposed operating model supports the council wide vision of
supporting people to enjoy healthy, active and independent lives. It is
based on enabling people in York to have control over how they manage
social care needs with a strong emphasis on the use of personal and
community assets and working in partnership.

4. Our intention is to move away from our current model, in which CYC adult
social care often intervenes at a point of crisis in customers’ lives. This
often risks creating a dependency between the customer and the council.
The new model, built on an early intervention approach, will use the
individual and their community’s capacity to self care and manage as the
first option. There will be an increase in the use of support outside of
council commissioned services and commissioned or directly provided
CYC social care services will be used as a last resort.

5. Moving to a model based on self care and community assets underpins
the directorate plans to reduce costs, in commissioned community support,
residential and nursing care. The model facilitates the following directorate
recurring savings to be achieved by 2019/20 totalling over £1.2 million

e Community Support £696k
e Nursing Care £467k
¢ Residential Care £101k

6. Additionally the model will seek to reduce internal care management costs.
The scope of this is to be determined through the detailed development of
the model.

7. The new operating model has a simple intent. This is to keep people
independent, exercising choice and control over how they live their lives.

Key elements of the model include:
a) Enhanced information advice and guidance.

The new operating model will include the provision of high quality
information through a range of channels which supports people living
safely, healthily and independently. Adult Social Care is currently
creating an advice, information and guidance strategy which can be
deployed through the new operating model. This work is closely aligned
with key CYC projects including the digital work streams, procurement
of case management portal and the development of community hubs.

b) Maximising personal resilience through non service based community
and personal means.



d)

f)

Page 87

The new model will create capacity within communities to support
themselves and generate the resilience to respond to crisis without
need escalating. This will be achieved through the development of
community capacity through local area coordination and commissioning
of low level sustainable capacity building support. Preparatory work is
currently underway through the Local Government Association care and
health efficiencies programme which is bringing resource into the
council to develop our methodology of implementing local area
coordination, the building stronger communities work stream and the
iImplementation of the CYC wellness service.

Maximising personal resilience through service based early intervention
and prevention

The new operating model recognises that there will be occasions where
service based interventions are required to supplement community and
individual resources. The model will see an increased service offer to
intervene early and provide short term support to prevent social care
need and build independence. The model will build on and develop
existing work of community facilitators, social prescribing and integrated
primary care hubs and wellness service.

Digital Self Service

The new operating model will follow a digital by default approach and
provide an enhanced and transactional digital offer. Through the use of
self-service website, mobile applications and social media, customers
will be able to access both information and advice about support and
engage in supported self assessment and support planning. This work
builds on existing projects including the procurement of case
management system, digital service project and the development of the
advice and information strategy.

Excellent Customer Services

The new operating model will revitalise the customer service offer for all
customers contacting the council about adult social care needs. The
offer will maximise customer fulfilment at the first point of contact,
through channelling them to the right source to assist them. Our
customer service offer will promote new channels for interacting with
the CYC and help customers grow accustomed to these new channels.

Maximising Independence

The new operating model will maximise customers’ independence and
prevent and reduce the need for long term council funded support. This



Page 88

will be through the provision of cohesive and integrated services that
enable independent living such as integrated reablement services,
primary care hubs and assistive technology.

g) Assessment and Care Management

The CYC assessment and care management service instead of being a
default option in the current model will become the option of last resort
in the new operating model. These services will support only those with
the most complex needs. These services will focus on helping
customers determine personal outcomes and how they wish to manage
risk. Choice and control will be promoted by helping customers source
support through personal budgets, individual service funds and direct
payments, reducing reliance on traditional provision.

h) External Brokerage

Customers with social care needs will be able to access enhanced
support, external to the council to plan and commission their support
rather than rely on CYC to manage the process. This improved offer will
build on the work already being undertaken with York Independent
Living Service and other agencies to create this as the offer of choice
for all customer groups within the city.

1) High Quality Provision

The operating model will see better advice and support to all customer
groups. This will ensure that provider resources in York are directed
where they are needed most. The focus on choice and control will build
on the commissioning work to develop more varied, quality provider
models to support a buoyant and sustainable market where there is
good availability of care within a price range which is affordable to those
who need it.

Work underway

8. As described above, there are several work streams that support CYC
towards the new operating model.

These include the work to develop community hubs, placed based
working, the development of the advice and information strategy, market
shaping and commissioning of third sector and independent providers,
integration with primary care, the development of a joint reablement
specification and provision, the procurement of a new case management
system, digital York and Customer Relationship Management
programmes.



Page 89

Future Development

9. This new operating model while building on work already underway
requires a whole scale change in CYC’s approach to adult social care.
This is particularly the case for the way in which CYC discharges its
responsibilities in assessing customers’ needs and ensuring support is
provided to meet these. It requires a complete shift in the mindset of the
leadership and workforce. This is to move us from our traditional care
management approach to a new relationship with customers, the
community, partners and providers. This relationship starts with customer
outcomes and has a more facilitative role for CYC and a much greater role
for personal and community assets. This change needs to be achieved at
a time when services and organisations are under increased pressure.

10. The work required to implement the operating model is complex and
currently being developed into a specification from which we can procure
the external support. From the procurement exercise the successfully
appointed organisation will be expected to work alongside CYC to deliver
the following:

a) A detailed review of the current care management services.
This will include the accurate and reliable quantification of costs and
benefits of current activity in the service. This will be achieved through
the collection and analysis of data in areas such as staffing structures
and allocations, technology infrastructure, business processes, assets,
budgetary spend and demand drivers.

b) A blueprint for the redesign of current care management services into a
new operating model that prevents, reduces and delays support needs,
IS person centred, based on personal and community assets and
promotes self management. This operating model blueprint will detail
financial benefit and improved customer experience and outcomes. The
model will be informed by the review and processes will be redesigned
through co-production with staff, partners, customers and the wider
community through a series of events and workshops.

c) The development and implementation of the delivery plan for the new
operating model. The plan will be co-produced and direct activity which
realises the benefits to customers and the projected financial savings.
The implementation plan will focus on:

I.  Support to transition away from traditional practices. This will be
led through work streams that will prepare, mobilise, deliver and
embed the model and mitigate risk of failure. This work will



Page 90

involve significant input of project management resource to
effectively mobilise the workforce and redirect activity towards
new ways of working.

Il. People and change management activities that support change
and enable its impact to be measured. These include aligning all
expected benefits and embedding the systematic measurement
and tracking of these. This includes engagement and consultation
with the workforce to develop and implement change needs
assessment that will bring the workforce into the heart of the
model.

lll.  Specific work packages that develop and deliver business
capability and under pin the new ways of working. These will
include strengthening of the process around information advice
and guidance, an improved digital offer, streamlined and self-
serve assessment based on a strengths approach, and the
redesign of support planning to include greater use of community
assets and self-management and reduce use of commissioned
services.

Budget Implications

11. The development of the new operating model is critical to the

directorate plans to reduce dependency on commissioned nursing,
residential and domiciliary care services and so meet the complete
savings plan by 2019/2020. Without ‘inverting the triangle of support’
and reducing the use of these services, demographic and financial
pressures will become unmanageable.

Rationale for External Support

12.

The need to bring in external resource is necessary because of the
scale and urgency of shift from our current operating model to the new
operating model is such that it cannot be done while the directorate
runs the complex high risk service on a day to day basis. An attempt to
do so is likely to result in only continued progressive improvement at
modest pace, rather than the required whole scale change. The use of
an organisation rather than an individual post mitigates against a single
point of failure that could occur through the use of an individual
consultant. Expertise exists outside of the council that can be brought
in to successfully enable this change. This is a strategy successfully
adopted by other councils to make this change for example in Barnsley
and Shropshire.



13.

14.

Page 91

CYC are producing a service specification and intend to go to market to
procure the necessary support to enable the change from our current
model to the new operating model. It is crucial that this process is
owned and influenced by the directorate workforce. Using wholly
external expertise runs the risk of not achieving this. In order to ensure
ownership throughout the process the directorate intends to second a
postholder at service manager level to work alongside the external
organisation.

In order to ensure value for money, the proposed route to securing
consultancy is to seek quotations from the small number of specialist
organisations. This will be a minimum of 3 organisations that have a
expertise and a track record of such work against the service
specification and evaluate using CYCs established evaluation
processes.

Resourcing

15.

The redesign work is fundamental in supporting us to re-focus on
delivering the requirements as set out in the Care Act. On this basis we
have set aside approx £1m to support us in the implementation of the
Care Act. We would suggest the resourcing to do this work is taken
from the funding as reserved.

Timescales

16.

17.

18.

From Executive approval procurement of external support is expected
to take approximately 9 weeks

The activities required to engage in, map, design, and implement a new
model are complex and require structural reorganisation, workforce
development, changes in system processes and policy and
commissioning approaches. They are therefore likely to take a 12
month period to develop before the model is fully deployed.

Consultation

Consultation with the public, customers and stakeholders is an integral
element of the design and implementation of the operating model. This
builds on existing consultation work, for example the development of
integrated reablement services.

Options

Option 1
To accept the recommendations laid out in this paper and agree to the
review of adult social care and the design and delivery of the operating



19.

20.

21.

22.

Page 92

model intended to deliver savings agreed through the budget setting
process.

Option 2
Do not agree to the review of adult social care with the consequent risk
to the budget and the delivery of support caused through.

Council Plan

These proposals support the council plan in ensuring that support
services are available to those who need them and that vulnerable
people stay safe and are protected from harm. It supports the
commitment to review adult social care.

Implications

The proposals are key to CYC'’s delivery of its responsibilities under the
Care Act 2014 and to ensuring this is done within the necessary
budget.

Risk Management

These proposals mitigate against potential budgetary and performance
risk for the CYC.

Contact Details

Author: Chief Officer Responsible for the
report:

Michael Melvin Martin Farran

Assistant Director Adult Social Director of Social Care

Care

No 554155

J 16 September
2016

Wards Affected: All [

For further information please contact the author of the report

Background Papers: None



Page 93

Annexes

Appendix 1 — Adult Social Care — Our priorities and focus



This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix 1

Adult Social Care — our priorities
and focus

Resilient Communities, Empowered
Individuals, Safe Support

Ge abed



Context

Our services

Make people feel safer than average

Support customers to have a good quality of life
Have Customer Service Excellence

Are viewed as excellent by mystery shoppers

Have implemented significant change, related to the Care Act
and the need to consider wider wellbeing

Came in on budget in 16/17

96 abed



Context - challenges

We know:
— We have an aging population
— People are living longer
— Demand on services will outstrip available funding
— Often, our first contact with a customer is at the point of
crisis
— Our system creates dependency on services
— We don’t always take an asset based approach

— Therefore, we need to think and act differently

/6 abed



14,000

12,000

10,000

8,000

6,000

4,000

2,000

Age profile

—

e 65-69
e 70-74

s “J5_7Q
113

— 80-84

= 85-89

e 90+

T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T

2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025 2026 2027 2028 2029 2030 2031 2032 2033 2034 2035 2036 2037

g6 abed



Budget Implications

* Savings required
—£1.135m in 16/17
— £1.040m in 17/18

* Given the demand pressures, our current
system is unsustainable in the medium term.

66 abed



Design Principles

Right
Network

Right Person - People who need support are able to
access it in an appropriate way to maximise their
resilience and maintain independence.

Right Time - Support is available early, both to
prevent and address an emerging need, rather than
waiting for things to reach a crisis.

Right Place - Support is coordinated locally, making
use of an individual’s skills and experience, their
support networks, community capacity and local
facilities wherever possible, ensuring it reflects the
individual’s life circumstances.

Right Support - People are helped to find support to
address the issues which prevent them having a good
quality of life, reducing dependence on statutory
services as far as possible.

Right Network - Those supporting an individual,

A including friends, family and partner organisations,
|| work collectively to support the person in the most

00T abed



4 Areas of Focus

1.

Universal information and
advice to promote health and
wellbeing

Targeted and co-ordinated
support for those at risk of
increasing need

Maximise independence
through reablement and
community support

Coordinate personalised
ongoing support around the
person’s needs and wishes

=eE amemEr

TOT abed



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 103 Agenda Item 11

YORK

- 3
“ZX i1y oF
S COUNCIL

Executive 29 September 2016

Report of the Director of Customer Services and Business Support
(Portfolio of the Executive Member for Finance & Performance)

Council Owned Companies
Summary

1. This report builds on the report which the Executive considered at their
meeting on 30" June 2016 and proposes detailed arrangements for the
new Shareholder Committee.

Recommendations
2. Members are asked to:

a) Approve the appointments of Cllr. Steward and Clir. Ayre to the
Shareholder Committee, with ClIr. Steward to be nominated as Chair.

b) Approve the appointment of Clir. A. Waller and CllIr. S. Rawlings as
substitute Members.

c) Invite the Leaders of the opposition groups to nominate a
representative of their groups to participate in a non-voting capacity at
meetings of the Committee, including an Independent Member.

d) Appoint ClIr. J. Hayes as the Independent Member.

e) Delegate to the Shareholder Committee the power within its terms of
reference to exercise all the Council’'s powers arising from its
ownership role other than those identified within this report as being
reserved to the Executive.

f) Agree that if the two Voting Members of the Shareholder Committee
are not in agreement, then the matter will be referred up to the
Executive for determination

g) Support the proposed division of decision making responsibilities
between the Executive, the Shareholder Committee and Officers as
set out in the annex to the report.



Page 104

Reason: To ensure proper governance of Council companies.
Background

3. The Executive approved new governance arrangements for Council
companies at its meeting in June. These involved establishing a new
Shareholder Committee whose terms of reference will allow it to:

Act as owners/joint owners of the company;
e Sign off Strategic business plans;

¢ Monitor performance and financial delivery against strategic business
plans;

e Exercise decision making over reserved matters;

e Determine the remuneration of Directors and any senior managers as
identified in the specific scheme of delegation and agreeing any
performance related bonus payments to staff;

e Make recommendations to Executive for any investment in/asset
transfers to or lending to companies;

e Delegating specific functions to Officers of the Council to increase
commercial flexibility.

Membership

4. The Committee will be a Committee of the Executive and the same rules
of procedure will apply to its meetings as apply to the Executive. Voting
Members therefore need to be members of the Executive. Councillors
Steward and Ayre have been nominated to serve on the Committee with
two other Executive members to act as substitutes.

5. Inline with the arrangements for Executive meetings it is proposed that
the Leaders of each of the opposition groups or their nominated
substitute should be invited to attend meetings and be given full rights to
participate in meetings although they will not be entitled to vote. It is also
suggested that an Independent Member be allowed to attend in the
same capacity.



Page 105

Division of responsibilities

The Executive will have full powers to make any executive decision that
the Council can make in respect of Council companies. However, in line
with the proposal contained in the earlier report it is suggested that the
Executive would generally restrict itself to decision making in respect of
the establishment and maintenance of the governance framework for,
the funding of and the decommissioning of Council owned companies.

Again in line with the previous report it is proposed that the Shareholder
Committee should, within its terms of reference, have the power to
exercise all the Council’s powers arising from its ownership role other
than those reserved to the Executive. This will include the monitoring of
performance and the exercise by each company of those powers which
require the Council to give its consent as a shareholder. Although the
Company Directors are normally responsible for the management of the
company, each company has certain “reserved matters” which require
the Council to approve the steps the Directors propose to take.

Under the Council’'s scheme of delegations Directors of the Council have
powers which, in some circumstances, could overlap with those
exercisable by the Committee. The previous report envisaged a
company by company analysis of reserved matters with an officer
scheme of delegation then being produced. Having undertaken that
analysis it is clear that there is substantial similarity between the
governance arrangements for the various companies allowing for a
relatively straightforward approach to be taken. A proposed division of
responsibilities is set out in the annex to this report.

Appointment of Directors

The function of appointing Council Members to an outside office is one of
the so called “local choice functions” which may be an executive function
if the Council so decides but otherwise is non- executive. Currently the
Council’s Constitution states that such appointments are non- executive.
For that reason these appointments are made by full Council or Staffing
Matters and Urgency Committee. However, where the Council is merely
giving its consent to an appointment to be made by existing Company
Directors (e.g. a non Council Member) that is an executive function. This
means that Staffing Matters and Urgency Committee would normally
appoint directors where the Council is nominating, and the Shareholder
Committee would approve the appointment of directors put forward by
the Companies.



Page 106

10. Specialist Implications
Legal — these are contained within the body of the report

There are no specific other implications associated with the report which
should be specifically reported.

Consultation
11. Consultation has been undertaken with the Executive and Officers.

Council Plan

12. The establishment of the Shareholder Committee and the new
Governance framework for all traded activity will contribute to the
objective:-

I. We are entrepreneurial, by making the most of commercial activities.
Risk Management

13. In light of the Public Interest Report and the increasing number of
companies now in existence the formation of a Shareholder Committee
will ensure that any risks are mitigated by rationalising the governance
arrangements of existing companies into a single governance
framework. This approach is intended to make the structure fit for
purpose now and in the future should the Council choose to establish
additional companies.

Contact Details

Author: Chief Officer Responsible for the report:
Andy Docherty Andy Docherty
Assistant Director Assistant Director
Report , |Date 31% August 2016
Approved
Wards Affected: List wards or tick box to indicate all All |V

For further information please contact the authors of the report



Page 107

Background Papers:

None
Annex

Annex 1 - Proposed division of responsibilities



This page is intentionally left blank



10.

11.
12.
13.

Page 109
Annex 1

Distribution of decision making powers for companies

For those matters relating to a company which require a Council
decision or where the approval of the Council is required within the
Company’s governance arrangements the following distribution of
powers will apply:

Decision reserved to the Executive
Changes to Company governance including amending Articles,

shareholder agreement etc

Agreements to amalgamation, merger, joint venture, profit sharing
or similar arrangements

Approving the taking of steps to wind up a company

Decisions which will normally be made by the Shareholder
Committee

Approving or making amendments to strategic or business plans

Acquiring shares in another company
Establishing subsidiary companies

Approving the appointment or dismissal of directors including the
Chair except where this requires a decision by Full Council or the
Staffing Matters and Urgency Committee

Approving the terms and conditions of appointment for directors
Entering contracts with directors

Matters relating to the employment of the senior management
team of the company

Changes to share capital and the admission of shareholders
Approving disposals of assets valued over £500K

Approving borrowing in excess of £500K



14.

15.

16.

17.

18.
19.

20.
21.
22.

23.

24.
26.

27.
28.
29.

Page 110
Annex 1

Making loans in excess of £500K other than by way of normal
trade credit

Entering, amending or terminating any agreements which create a
potential liability for the company in excess of £500K

Making changes to the nature of the Company’s business

Approving a decision which could otherwise be taken by an Officer
but which would, if being taken by the Council, amount to a key
decision.

All matters relating to the approval of dividends

Exercising any powers to issue instructions to Directors
Decisions which will normally be made by Officers
Approving changes to the area in which the company works
Altering the company’s name or registered office

Matters relating to the employees or agents of the company other
than its senior management team

Giving the Council’s specific approval to any matter provided for
within the approved business plan

Approving disposals of assets valued under £500K

Approving borrowing of less than £500K subject to a clear
business case

Making loans of less than £500K subject to a risk assessment
Approving changes to accounting arrangements

Entering, terminating or amending any agreements which create a
potential liability for the company not exceeding £500K



	Agenda
	3 Minutes
	Minutes

	5 Forward Plan
	6 New Council Homes - Newbury Avenue
	Council House Building - Newbury Avenue - Annex 1
	Council House Building - Newbury Avenue - Annex 2
	Council House Building - Newbury Avenue - Annex 3
	Council House Building - Newbury Avenue - Annex 4
	Council House Building - Newbury Avenue - Annex 5

	7 Disposal of Grove House, Penley's Grove Street
	Grove House Annex 1
	Grove House Annex 2 - Schedule of offers
	Grove House Confidential Annex 3

	8 Proposed Long Term Leases - Fishergate Postern Tower and Ovington Cricket Club, Little Knavesmire
	Annex 1 Fishergate Postern
	Annex 2 Little Knavesmire Ovington Cricket Pitches

	9 Application for Community Right to Bid under the Localism Act 2011 - White Rose House, Wheldrake
	White Rose House Annex 1
	White Rose House Annex 2

	10 Progress toward a new Operating Model for Adult Social Care
	Appendix 1 CMT operating model

	11 Council Owned Companies
	Annex




